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CHAl RMAN HANCE: Good eveni ng | adi es and
gentl enen. Wlcone to the Gty Zoning Board of
Adj ust ment regul ar schedul ed neeting on May 5, 2025.
Readi ng of the Sunshine Law. In
conformance with the Sunshi ne Law of New Jersey,
noti ce of the neeting was posted in the Minici pal

Clerk's office on Wednesday, April 30, 2025. Roll

call.

MR EINGORN:  Chai r man Hance.

CHAl RMAN HANCE:  Her e.

MR, EINGORN: Vice-Chairman Still.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN STI LL: Here.

MR EINGORN: Ms. Merricks. Absent.
Ms. Al ston.

MS. ALSTON: Present.

MR EINGORN: Ms. Nunez. Absent.
Ms. Rivera.

MS. RIVERA: Here.

MR EI NGORN: Ms. Moss.

MS. MOSS: Here.

MR EINGORN:  Ms. Mason.

MS. MASON. Here.

MR EINGORN. Before we get started, does
anyone have a cell phone? | heard sone ringing

earlier. |If you can just silence them That would
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be greatly appreciated.

First matter for the agenda, would be

approval of the mnutes for April of 2025. Do we

have a notion to approve the m nutes?

CHAl RMAN HANCE: Mbtion to approve.

MR El NGORN:

Do we have a second?

VI CE- CHAI RVAN STI LL:
MR EINGORN: |'1]

take a roll-call

Second.

vot e.

Chai rman Hance.

CHAI RMAN HANCE:

Yes.

MR, EINGORN: Vice-Chairman Still.
VI CE- CHAI RVAN STI LL:  Yes.
MR EINGORN: Ms. Al ston.
MS. ALSTON:  Yes.
MR, EINGORN: Ms. Rivera.
MS. RIVERA:  Yes.
MR EINGORN: Ms. Moss.
M5. MOSS:  Yes.
MR EINGORN:  Ms. Mason.
MS. MASON:.  Yes.

El NGORN:  So noved.

"Il read the list. |If you hear your

application, please | et us know you' re here and we'll
mar k t he agenda.

The first nmatter of A d Business is
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Macedoni a Baptist Church. | saw counsel this
evening. W'Ill mark that present.

New Busi ness: The first matter is Yosef
Abed, 375 Marlton Avenue.

MR, ABED:. Here.

MR EI NGORN: Good eveni ng.

I rving Medina, 2630 Federal Street.

MR, PAYTON: |'m here on behalf of the
appl i cant.

MR EI NGORN:  Ahned Chei kh, 650-642 Pine
Street.

MR 1ZZO  Yes, we're here.

MR EINGORN: 537 Market Street
Properties, LLC, 537 Market Street.

MR 1ZZO  Ready.

MR EINGORN:  Vision Capital |nvestnents,
LLC, 840 Haddon Avenue.

MR SARIN. Here.

MR EINGORN: Good eveni ng, Counsel.

JORDAN & JORDAN: 550-554 Line Street.

MR, SUNKETT: Here.

MR EINGORN: Good eveni ng.

Betty Tyson, 411 Pfeifer Street.

MS. TYSON: Here.

MR EINGORN: Good eveni ng.
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Mohammad Far hat, 807 Sylvan Street.

MR, FARHAT: Here.

MR EINGORN. Mtchell Properties, LLC
555 Chestnut Street.

MR M TCHELL: Here.

MR EINGORN:. Dwi ght Warren, 841 Princess
Avenue. Anybody here for Dw ght Warren, 841
Princess? That's the last one so we'll recall it.

And then lastly for the agenda, we have a
deficient notice, 1446 S. 4th Street. |s anybody
here tonight for that natter? Notice was deficient

so if you' re here for that, it's not going to be

heard but they nay renotice. W'Il| see.
Then after that, we'll adopt all the
Resol uti ons except for one. Then we'll adjourn.

Then the first, A d Business, Micedonia
Bapti st Church, 812-814 Kai ghn Avenue. (Good eveni ng,
Counsel .

MR PLATT: Good eveni ng, Counsel or,
menbers of the Board. M nane is Stuart Platt from
the Platt Law Group on behalf of the applicant.

We're going to be requesting a one final adjournment
this evening for Macedonia Baptist Church, G rcle of
Li fe Funeral Hone proposal.

Since the last tinme we had the hearing
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which | believe it was in Cctober of |ast year, one
of the remaining issues in the case -- we put on a
| ot of our case -- one of the remaining issues in the
case was the parking, the off-street-parking. W
have an agreenent that's in place but unfortunately,
our planner could not be here this evening, M.
Mller. |It's an inportant aspect of our
application. It changes it quite dramatically in
favor of having sufficient off-street parking. W
need M. MIller to take the facts and the information
to anend his variance testinony.

| know that previously it had been
i ndicated that we had to file a whole new
application. | amrequesting a postponenent and we
woul d certainly renotice and republished the
hearing. | asked your |earned counsel. W would
even go out and pay for a transcript of the | ast
hearing so that people who have not been here before
or people who were here, need to be refreshed. |
under stand you al ready have that transcript. So
we're asking for one final adjournnment. | don't want
to | ook at Ms. Muhammad, but |I'm asking for one final
adj ournnent to allow --

MR EINGORN: Is that you beggi ng,

Counsel ?
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MR. PLATT: Yeah, | kind of call it
pl eadi ng but you can call it begging. That's what --
we woul d do the renotice and anything el se that you
t hought was reasonable. | have ny client here
toni ght who can certainly confirmthat M. MIller was
unavail able for this evening. Usually he's here
anyway but he's not.

MR EINGORN. | nmean, |'mnot going to
question the validity of your statenent that he's
unavai lable. | think one of the big i ssues we have
is, we have a |lot of new Board nenbers and the Board
has been reconstituted. The Board will definitely
consi der the adjournnent request and the offer to
renotice. | think we're going to need nore
testinony than just M. MIller's though. | think at
the very |l east we need to go back through Dena's
|l etter and just get the new Board nenbers up to
speed. So if you' re wlling to just re-present the
testi nony.

MR PLATT: The answer is, we'll bring
back all our professionals, certainly the engi neer
and the pl anner.

MR EINGORN:. | think that's acceptable.

CHAI RVAN HANCE:  Yes.

M5. MOORE: So the |last neeting that we
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were at was Novenber of 2024.

MR PLATT: Was it Novenber?

M5. MOORE: But the application
originally was prepared for an April of 2024
appearance. So it has just been sone tine.

MR PLATT: Understood. | certainly want
to make sure the Board has everything in front of
themand we'll refresh it if we can.

MR EINGORN. But this way we don't have
to repay the fee -- the applicant doesn't have to
repay the fees. But at |east the Board can get up to
speed wi th what happened at the | ast hearing. And
Evita said, if you can resubmt your plans because
copi es have nade their way to honmes that people that
no | onger have them

MR PLATT: We will.

MR EINGORN: At this tinme, we wll swear
i n Dena.

DENA MOORE JOHNSON, PE, CVME, having first
been duly sworn/affirmed, was exam ned and testified
as foll ows:

M5. MOORE: So did you plan on nmaking any

changes to your project or are you just going to
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submt the sanme one?

MR PLATT: Everything is going to be the
sane. W' re not naking any changes to the project
ot her than we have sone additional parking testinony
and parking informati on. And we need a variance for
that. So that's what we want to put on. |If you feel
we need to bring back everybody, we will. Certainly
t he engi neer and the pl anner.

M5. MOORE: Well, 1'll present ny sane
|l etter then because it's a fairly new Board. So I|'I|
just present ny sanme letter.

MR PLATT: So then we'll react to it
accordingly. Thank you.

M5. MOORE: All right.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: We al so need a
certificate. You were suppose to bring it back to
show us the certificate. Do you renenber that?

MR ROALAND: Yeah, we have one.

M5. MASON: Fromthe state?

MR, EINGORN. Fromthe state?

CHAI RVAN HANCE: From the state.

MR. ROALAND: Yeah, we have one.

MR EINGORN. Geat. Then we'll see you
next nont h.

MR PLATT: If it hasn't already been
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submtted, we wll resubmt it.

MR EINGORN. So for the public, here is
what is happening. This matter will be heard next
nmonth at the next nonthly nmeeting. The applicant is
required to renotice both through the paper and
t hrough certified nail or personal service, however

t hey choose to do that in accordance with New Jersey

law. At that tine, the applicant will re-present the
testinmony and we'll forward with the application at
that tine.

MR PLATT: Wuld you want us to get a
new 200-foot list and do you want us to rely upon the
ol d one?

MR EINGORN. Yes. Definitely contact
Evita for the |ist.

MR PLATT: For a new one?

MR EINGORN:  Yes. Please.

MR PLATT: Okay. You got it. See you
next nont h.

MR EINGORN: Looking forward to it.

First matter of New Busi ness, Yosef Abed,
375 Marlton Avenue. Good evening, M. WI son.

MR WLSON. Good evening. John WIson
appeari ng on behalf of M. Abed.

This is an application for a continued
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dupl ex use. M. Abed filed an the application. And
| have pictures and a schenmatic of the building that
"Il introduce. At this point, will you swear in
M. Abed?

MR ElI NGORN:  Yes.

Wul d you raise your right hand, please.

YOSEF ABED, having first been duly
sworn/ affirmed, was exam ned and testified as
fol | ows:

MR EINGORN: Pl ease state your nanme and
address for the record.

MR, ABED: Yosef Abed, 113 Li nwood
Circle, Princeton, New Jersey 08540.

MR EINGORN. M. Abed, you are a qui et
fellow We need you to be nuch | ouder tonight.

MR, ABED:. kay.

MR EINGORN: Everybody's got to hear
you.

MR WLSON:. Tell the Board what your
relationship is with 375 Marlton Avenue?

MR ABED:. The property owner.

MR WLSON:. And when you purchased the

property, what was the configuration of the
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property?
ABED:. A dupl ex.
WLSON: Like M. Eingorn said, be

2 3

| oud.
MR ABED: Oh, multi-famly.
Two-fam |y.
MR WLSON:. Wat brought you here?
MR ABED:. | went to get a rental cert.
They told ne that | needed a CCO
MR WLSON:. How nmany famlies live in
t he property?
MR ABED:. Two famlies.
MR WLSON: As far as the utilities, how
many gas neters are there?
ABED: Two gas neters.
WLSON: How many electric neters?

ABED: Two electric neters.

23 33

WLSON:. Wo pays for the water and
sewer ?

MR ABED. | pay for the water. Tenants
for the sewer.

MR WLSON. And |I'm show ng you four
pages. Tell the Board what they are?

MR ABED. | |abeled them Front view

which is two doors. One goes upstairs and one goes
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downstairs. The rear of the building; the side of
the building. The street view, every house on those
bl ocks is a duplex. There is no single-famly hones.
Marl ton, Rand, Grand, majority are dupl exes.

On the second page, it shows the
pi ctures of the two heaters, the two electric neters,
two breaker panels, two water heaters and two gas
nmeters. And then on the third page which is
Apartment 1, there's a kitchen, bathroom 1iving
room dining roomand three bedroons. On the | ast
page, sane thing, kitchen, bathroom 1living room
These are all existing fromthe day they built the
unit. | offer themfor the Board to review.

MR, EINGORN: Sure. The Board does have
copies in its packet so we'll mark the packet as
Exhibit A-1 to the application.

MR WLSON:  Yes.

(Wher eupon Exhibit No. A-1, Packet, was
mar ked for identification.)

MR EINGORN: Very good. So narked.
We'll nove it into the evidence.

MR WLSON: |'mshowi ng you four pages,
four hand-drawn pages. Tell the Board what they
are?

MR ABED:. The first one is for the
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exterior of the property. The second one is the
basenment. The third one is Apartnent Awith all the
bedroons | abel ed or the roons | abeled. And the third
one is for the second fl oor.

MR EINGORN. We'll mark the floor plans
A- 27

MR. ABED. Yes.

(Wher eupon Exhibit No. A-2, Floor Plans
was marked for identification.)

MR EINGORN: Al right. So noved.

MR WLSON:. You said you went to get
rental approval for a new tenant?

MR. ABED. Yes.

MR WLSON: And that was deni ed?

MR ABED:. They just said | needed a
CCO Oiginally when | did go in 2023, they did give
themto nmew which they're right here. But when a
tenant noved out and | went to re-rent it, they told
themthat | needed a CCO so applied for it. It was
originally applied for right before COVID but
everything shut down so | had to reapply this tine.
It was filled out originally in 2019. Because of
COVI D t hey shut down. They said they weren't making
any appointnents at the tine.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: How | ong have you owned
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t he property?

MR, ABED. | think about four, five
years.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: And you' re not naki ng
any changes there at all?

MR, ABED:. No.

MR WLSON: | have nothing further

MR, EI NGORN:. Thank you, Counsel.

Does the Board have any questions? |
think we're all famliar. Having no questions from
the Board, we'll open this matter to the public. |Is
anybody here tonight that would |ike to be heard on
the matter of 375 Marlton Avenue? Hearing none and
seei ng none, we'll close the public portion.

The applicant is here for a Cert of
Non- Conform ng Use related to a preexisting dupl ex.
The Board should do a quick discussion of the
standard which is whether or not this appears to be a
dupl ex prior to the change in zone and then nake a
not i on.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: We have | ot of these
cases comng up before us. | do see separate hot
wat er heaters, electric box, gas neters and al so
separate heaters.

VI CE- CHAI RMAN STILL: It was a dupl ex.
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It's a duplex now. | |ike that the pictures show
that it's in very good shape and condition inside.
A lot of detailed photos. So | think it's in good
shape. Mdtion to pass.
MR EINGORN. We have notion to pass. Do
we have a second.
CHAI RVAN HANCE:  Second.
MR EINGORN: I'Il take a roll-call vote.
Chai r man Hance.
CHAl RMVAN HANCE:  Yes.
MR, EINGORN: Vice-Chairman Still.
VI CE- CHAI RVAN STI LL:  Yes.
El NGORN: Ms. Al ston.
ALSTON:  Yes.
El NGORN: Ms. R vera.
Rl VERA:  Yes.
El NGORN:  Ms. Moss.
MOSS:  Yes.
El NGORN:  Ms. Mason.
MASON:  Yes.

2P 30 253D

El NGORN: Congratul ati ons. Mti on
passes. Have a good ni ght gentl enen.

MR ABED:. Thank you.

MR WLSON: Thank you.

MR EINGORN: Next matter, Irving Medina,
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2630 Federal Street. [|'Il swear you in.

TONY PAYTON, having first been duly
sworn/affirmed, was exam ned and testified as
fol | ows:

MR. EINGORN: Pl ease state your nanme and
address for the record.

MR PAYTON: Tony Payton, Jr., 830
Ti mbercreek Lane, Wayne, Pennsylvani a 19087.

MR EINGORN:. M. Payton, is Irving
Medi na here tonight?

MR PAYTON: He is caught in traffic.

MR EINGORN:. He's caught in traffic. So
here's the issue. As far as |'maware, you' re not an
attorney licensed to practice lawin the State of New
Jersey, correct?

MR PAYTON: That is correct.

MR EINGORN: So you can't represent
M. Medina. W can't let you represent him

MR PAYTON: | thought ny nane was on the
application as well.

MR EINGORN:. Are you the property
owner ?

MR PAYTON: W are purchasing the
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property together.

MR EINGORN. We're purchasing the
property together.

M5. MUHAMVAD: Because your nane wasn't

on the --

MR PAYTON: On the Agreenent of Sal e.

M5. MUHAMMVED: Right. So what you can do
is, have a seat and we'l|l call you when he cones in.

MR PAYTON: Ckay.

MR, EINGORN: So what we'll do is, we'll
have M. Medina bring the application and he'll call

you as a W tness.

MR PAYTON: No problem

MR EINGORN: W just have to wait until
he shows up. |I'msorry for the inconvenience. Let
us know when he arrives.

MR EINGORN:. We'll take the next matter,
Ahmed Chei kh, 640-642 Pine Street. Good eveni ng
counsel ?

MR 1ZZO  Good evening. | have the
applicant with nme, Ahned.

MR EINGORN:  Woul d you raise your right
hand, pl ease.

AHVED CHEI KH, having first been duly
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sworn/affirmed, was exam ned and testified as
fol | ows:

MR EINGORN: Pl ease state your nane and
address for the record.

MR, CHElI KH:  Ahned Chei kh, 640 Pine
Street.

MR 1Z2ZO. M. Ahned, your location is
640 Pine Street. What's that |ocation used for?

MR CHEIKH It's used for a convenience
store.

MR 1ZZ0  How | ong have you oper at ed
that store on Pine Street?

MR CHElI KH: About a year now.

MR EINGORN. You said a year?

MR CHEI KH:  Yes.

MR 1ZZ0  The way your property is set
up, you're on the point facing the point where Pine
Street and 7th Street diverge?

MR, CHEI KH:  Yes.

MR 1ZZO  And you submtted a picture
show ng that |ayout, right?

MR EINGORN:. Is that the picture?

MR, CHEI KH:  Yes.

MR 1ZZO  That's your store in the
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pi cture?
MR, CHEIl KH:
MR | ZZCO

you rent that space?

Yes.

Do you own that building or do

MR CHEIKH | rent that space.
MR 1ZZO And before you went into the
space as a tenant, did you ask the owner about

operating a store there?

MR. CHEIl KH:
VR.
did he give you?

| ZzZZzO  And what ki nd of

Yes.

I nstructions

MR CHEIKH: He applied for zoning and
he's got it.

MR EINGORN:. I'msorry. Applied for
what ?

MR CHElI KH:  Zoni ng.

MR 1ZZ0. So you believe your |andlord

got a zoning permt before you noved in in 2023 in

fact, right?
MR CHEI KH:
MR

your |icenses.

nmercantile |icense and
true?

MR CHEIl KH:

Yes.

| ZZO And then you subsequently got

You got a tobacco license, a

a sales tax permt; is that

Yes.
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MR 1ZZO. Did you open the business
t hen?

MR, CHEI KH:  Yes.

MR 1ZZO  And then you found out that
the City required you to cone back for this hearing;
is that correct?

MR CHEI KH:  Yes.

MR 1ZZ0. Now, did you convert that
property froma residence into a store?

MR CHEI KH: No.

MR 1ZZ0. And do you know if there was a
store there before you started running a store?

MR CHEIKH | believe there was a
phar macy avail abl e.

MR 1ZZ0. A pharmacy?

MR CHEI KH:  Yes.

MR 1ZZ0  And your business, though, is
a conveni ence store, not a pharmacy; is that correct?

MR, CHEI KH:  Yes.

MR 1ZZO.  And have you received any kind
of conplaints fromanybody in the nei ghborhood or
anybody in the City in an enforcenent capacity about
you conducting business at that |ocation in that
manner ?

MR CHElI KH  No.
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MR 1ZZO |Is there any reason you want
to ask the Board or tell the Board why you shoul d be
permtted to continue operating the store at 7th and
Pi ne?

MR CHEIKH Yes. Before |l got this
| ocation, | asked the owner to get ne the zoning
before | spend ny noney in it to open a business.

And | believe he applied for it and he has got ne the
zoning. He applied for zoning as a pharmacy or a
conveni ence store and he's got it. So then after
that | rented the pl ace.

MR 1ZZ0 So you just want to affirm
what he al ready did?

MR CHEIKH  Yes.

MR 1ZZ0. And you relied on himto
insure you that it had al ready passed one tine; is
that true?

MR CHEIKH  Yes.

MR EINGORN: So they're having trouble
hearing you down there. Correct ne if |I'm wong.

You said that you went to the | andl ord and asked hi m
to get the zoning; is that correct?

MR CHEI KH:  Yes.

MR EI'NGORN: And your testinony was that

you t hought he did get the zoning and he cane --
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where did he go?

MR CHEIKH. He got the zoning. | got a
pi cture of it.

MR 1ZZ0O He has a zoning permt from
2023. It says pharmacy on the top.

MR. EINGORN: So he cane in for a
pharmacy. You got it. You want to use a
conveni ence store; is that correct?

MR CHEIKH: He put a conveni ence store
over there too.

MR EINGORN: Okay. And what was it
before, do you know?

MR CHEIKH: Before it was closed, there
was nothing init. But | believe a few years ago it
was a pharmacy.

MS5. RIVERA: |t was a pharmacy.

MR EI NGORN. Ckay. So we have sone
know edge of the property. 1'mgoing to ask you
about the sign above the door. Did you install the
sign?

MR CHEI KH:  Yes.

MR EINGORN:. Was there a sign there
bef ore?

MR, CHEIKH: No. But | asked how can

put the sign and they gave a picture how big the sign
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can be. | did not get a permt for the sign

MR EINGORN. Okay. Who told you you
could put the sign?

MR CHEI KH: The owner.

MR EINGORN. The owner. Got it. Ckay.

So | don't know what the size of the sign
IS suppose to be or what size the sign is so you're
going to need a sign permt for that because it | ooks
rather large. Al right?

MR CHEIKH  Yes.

MR EINGORN. And that's if you're
approved tonight. Wth that said, do you have any
other testinony that you' d |like the Board to hear?

MR CHEIKH: No. That wll be all.

MR EI'NGORN: A quick question. The
bottomfloor, it doesn't |look like it was
residential in nature, right? It looks like it has
al wvays been a store?

MR CHEI KH  Yes. It was |li ke this when

| got it.

MR EINGORN: Set up that way?

MR CHEI KH:  Yes.

MR EINGORN: |Is there a bathroomin this
bui | di ng?

MR CHEIKH  Yes.
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MR EINGORN: Does it have a shower?

MR, CHElI KH: No.

MR, EINGORN: No shower. Cot it.

Does the Board have questions for the
applicant?

CHAI RVAN HANCE:  Yes.

So when | first sawit, it had 24 hours
open. I|I'mjust letting you know t hat.

MR CHElI KH  Ckay.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: | check every store.
| saw himclean it, open it but then you changed it.
| don't know if soneone told you | couldn't be up

there for 24 hours a day.

MR CHEIKH | didn't know the | aw of the
Cty. | just nove here to open this business. And
know ng that, | changed the hours. And later on |

changed the sign too.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: | was in your store
today. The only thing | didn't like was the traffic
in front of the store. You have a |ot of people
standing in front of the store. So when | tried to
get into the store, everybody wanted a doll ar.

And you got to keep that area cl ean
around there. That's what happens when a | ot of

people hang out in front of the store, a lot of trash
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accurmul ates. | nean, I'mgoing to try to do -- [|"'l
put sone sign that says 'no loitering.'” But, | nean,
t he area over there, they have a | ot of people,
honel ess. | can't control that.

MR 1ZZO. Wll, you' re going to have to
do sonething to keep it under control.

MR CHEIKH 1'mgoing to put signs and
such there.

CHAI RMAN HANCE: |I'mfamliar wth the
ar ea.

M5. MASON. Is there another store right
across the street fromyou?

MR CHEIKH Yes. There's a store and a
| aundry acr oss.

MR EINGORN:  Any ot her questions for the
applicant?

MS. ALSTON:. | didn't quite hear. So
Chai rman Hance said that there were a | ot of people
standi ng outside. Are these custoners of yours or
just people that are hanging out in front of the
store and they can wal k in?

MR CHEIKH. Most of the custoners, they
just buy and go. Those people are, | believe, just
hangi ng out over there.

CHAI RMAN HANCE: | think a lot of them
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are honel ess al so.

MR, CHEI KH:  Yes.

M5. MASON: Is this what the store | ooks
i ke now i nside?

MR, CHEI KH:  Yes.

CHAI RMAN HANCE: | think if you put a
sign up out there, at |east you' re show ng himthat
t hey cannot hang out front of the store.

MR CHEIKH | will do that

CHAl RMAN HANCE: It will be a lot safer.

M5. MASON: |s there a tobacco store or
is it a convenience store?

MR CHEIKH It's a convenience store.
We sell tobacco but we sell everything, grocery,
bever age.

CHAIl RMAN HANCE: It's a conveni ence
store. Very clean. | have no problemw th that.
Just the vicinity.

MR CHEIKH | will do what | can about
t hat .

M5. MASON. |I'msorry. You're just
taki ng over this spot or you' ve had it for how
| ong?

MR CHEIKH: | had it for a year and a

f ew nont hs.
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M5. MASON:. About a year?
MR, CHEI KH:  Yes.
M5. MASON: And you said before that it

was a pharmacy?

MR CHEIKH | believe so. | nean when |
cane to it it was enpty. It was nothing to it. But
| heard that it was a pharnmacy before. | don't know

how | ong ago it was but yes.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: It's been closed for a
whi | e.

MR EI'NGORN:  Any additional questions?

Open to the public. Anybody here tonight
that would Iike to be heard on the application
regarding 640 to 642 Pine Street requesting a
conveni ence store? Hearing none and seei ng none,
we'll close the public portion.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: | have one inportant
gquestion. Are you open every day?

MR CHEI KH:  Yes.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: And the tinmes?

MR, CHEIKH: The tinmes are from6 until
11.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: So you're sayi ng
6:00 aam to 11: 00 p.m?

MR CHEI KH:  Yes.
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CHAl RMAN HANCE: |s that everyday?

MR CHElI KH: Everyday but weekends we are
open form6 to 12.

M5. MASON:. | have a question on that.

So there's no regulations as far as hours?

MR EINGORN: | don't know what the
zoni ng ordi nance says but the applicant obviously
has to conply to whatever the zoni ng ordi nance
requires. You can neke that a condition of approval
as well that the applicant conplies with the opening
and cl osing hours of the ordinance.

MR 1ZZ0. When you got your nercantile
license, did they tell you the hours that you're
all oned to operate?

MR CHEIKH Yes. They told nme the hours
and |"'mfollowng what they told ne. They told ne
that | can open from6 to 11 on weekdays. And on the
weekend, | can open until 12.

MR EINGORN:  Any ot her questions?

The Board is tasked with reviewing this
application, a request for Certificate of
Non- Conform ng Use for a convenience store for this
retail space. And the Board should do a di scussion
and make a notion. Oobviously, | heard a couple of

conditions that were floated so if there's a noti on,
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certainly those conditions can be added and the one
was the sign for the "no loitering." And other one
was regarding the hours of operation. So if you nake

a notion, you can consider those conditions as well.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN STILL: | think with the
|l oitering being addressed with a sign, |'mnot sure
how much control that has. But that sign -- | don't

know how nuch nore control would you have over the
loitering. Because |'ve been past the place a bunch
of times as well and I'm concerned with that part of
it.

MR EINGORN: The applicant can al ways
call the police as well.

M5. MASON: | nean, he's inherited that
because it's al ways been a hot spot right there, you
know, as far as loitering. And as you said, it was
nobody there beforehand. And this is just ny -- |I'm
al ways just concerned of oversaturation. Like
there's a conveni ence store already across the
street.

And so, you know, the need for another
conveni ence store, how nuch is it of a need in that
area? And is that why it's even creating loitering?
Because | know just overall in that area, it's just

very busy. |'mnot saying that, you know, not to
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approve it. It's just having a store right directly
across the street. W're starting to see that and
starting to see a lot of |ike the tobacco-facing
type of store. | know that they have other stuff in
there but that's sonething I'mjust throw ng out

t here.

MS. ALSTON: So you said you've been
there for a year now you' ve been open?

MR CHEIKH  Yes.

MS. ALSTON: Have you been profitable?
Have you been show ng --

MR CHEIKH  Yes.

MS. ALSTON: Just to go piggybacki ng on
what Ms. Mason i s saying, you know, the
oversaturati on of people hangi ng out and the
loitering, is it feasible? Wth you selling the
product, is there still a need although there is
anot her conveni ence store right across?

MR, CHEIKH: | nean, nost of the
| oitering over there, they're not even buying stuff
fromnme. They were just there before. Most of ny
custoners, they conme fromthe nei ghborhood or through
cars.

MR EINGORN. Did you bring a copy of

your nercantile |license tonight?
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MR CHEIKH  Yeah, | got it on ny phone,
| believe.

MR EINGORN:. W can't accept things on a
phone. W need it on paper otherw se we can't keep
it inthe records. Right? W need it for the
appl i cation.

MR CHEIKH | got other licenses.

M5, MUHAMVAD: Nornmally we don't give
t hose without a zoning permt.

MR CHEI KH. Because the owner got ne the
zoni ng before | got to the business.

M5, MUHAMVAD: For a pharmacy, right?

MR CHEIKH: And a conveni ence store.
Ei t her the pharmacy or conveni ence store.

MR 1ZZ0 Yes. Both words are on the
permt. It says pharmacy/conveni ence store.

M5. MUHAMMAD:. Did they ever open as a
phar macy?

MR 1ZZO. No, no. It was anticipation
of himnoving in. But the zoning officer granted the
permt wi thout a hearing. And then, neverthel ess, we
wer e summoned to this hearing here.

M5. MUHAMVAD: So it sounds |ike you
m ght need anot her application which he does have.

For the pharmacy with the conveni ence store which is
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nore of a pharmacy that just sells a fewthings. So
it's now the pharmacy is totally omtted fromthe
application, right?

MR CHEI KH:  Yes.

M5. MUHAMVAD: And it's just a
conveni ence store?

MR CHEIKH  Yes.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: Do we need to bring him

back?

MR EINGORN: That's up to you guys.

M5, MUHAMVAD: Just to be clear.

It's just that it seens weird that it's
open without -- it's not possible to have a CO when

you're here. They are here for a zoning permt so
you can't get nercantile; you can't get a COif you
don't have the zoning. He's here for zoning. It
just seens that the other licenses that he had has to
be changed for a conveni ence store and not a

phar macy.

CHAI RVAN HANCE:  Ckay.

MR CHEIKH If | may say, he was trying
torent it as a pharmacy or as a conveni ence store.
That's why he put the application as a
phar macy/ conveni ence store because | asked himto get

me a zoning before I rent the place.
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CHAI RVAN HANCE: So there's a | ot of
phar maci es that has a conveni ence store in it.

MR CHEIKH  Yeah. That's what they said
when | nmet with the zoning.

CHAI RMAN HANCE: | think when he put
phar macy/ conveni ence store, | think they ran into a
problem It's either going to be a pharmacy with a
conveni ence store in it.

MR CHEIKH  They said that's what they
t hought it was going to be.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: | think we need to being
hi m back.

MR EINGORN. No. Wat's happening is,
he has a nercantile |icense for sonething that he's
not really operating.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: Ri ght.

MR EINGORN: So he's here tonight asking
for either an interpretation that a conveni ence store
is allowed, | guess, under what he already has or a
Certificate of Non-Conform ng Use saying that this
conveni ence store is sonething that is allowed here
before the change in the zoning which is now R-2

M5. MUHAMVAD: This application is for a
conveni ence store only, right?

MR CHEIKH  Yes.
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M5. MUHAMVAD: So your nercantile that

you have for a pharmacy and conveni ence store, has to

be changed to just convenience store. |If this is
approved, 1'll nake sure that Marvin gets the
resolution and they'll have to nmake that change with

t he ot her departnents.

MR CHEIKH: Wien | applied for all the
licenses, | always applied for a convenience. | --

MS. MUHAMVAD: This application right now
is for a convenience store only. It don't say
phar macy.

MR CHEI KH:  Yes.

M5. MUHAMVAD: So you got to nove forward
with just a conveni ence store, right?

MR CHEI KH:  Yes.

MR EINGORN: | think that's what he has
done.

M5, MUHAMVAD: | just want to make it
clear that, because like | said, it's odd that he's
open and he don't have no permt.

MR EINGORN:. Right. Understood.

MR 1ZZO It seens |like a Preexisting
Non- conform ng Use and there was a m sunder st andi ng
when his | andl ord cane in before he opened. Could

have applied for a Preexisting Non-Conform ng Use.
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VI CE- CHAI RVAN STILL: Can we can nake it
a precondition that he brings in the CO?

MR EINGORN. He's going to have to
update all of that if you approve him R ght? And
the stuff he has really isn't rel evant because it's
not technically for the same use. |It's for a simlar
use.

M5, MUHAMVAD: Correct.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: So we're going to go a
little bit back. Wiere |I live right on Broadway, |
got Frank's here; Manual's is here; two conveni ence
stores; Chinese food store here; liquor store here.
That's all conpetition.

M5. MASON:. Right | think the other --
the fact of the matter is, there's no permts or
anything to rent it right now.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: Yes. That's the key.

MS. MASON: So we have to put sone
conditions on it if we approve it.

MR EINGORN. Really the conpetition in
t he nei ghborhood is not a basis to deny the
application. W have to weigh it on its face. This
isn't a variance application. R ght? It's not a
vari ance application. |It's either an interpretation

and | really don't know what the interpretation would
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be. It's not in the denial letter and the applicant
hasn't asked for it, or a Certificate of

Non- Conform ng Use. It's basically a retail use,
right, in the R 2 Zone in a building that | ooks |ike
it was made for retail? Right?

CHAI RVAN HANCE: Ri ght.

MR, EINGORN: That's all.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN STI LL: Can we nmeke it so
t hat he cones back to us when he gets those things
changed?

MR EINGORN. | nean, you could nake it a
condi tion of approval that he supplies updated
materials, right, if he's approved.

M5. MUHAMMAD. Once he gets approved and
| circulate his resolution and his permt, it wll
automatically update it.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: So | nmake a notion that
we pass wWth conditions that the applicant put up a
"no loitering' sign. Also, the store sign is up
there. He has to cone back for that.

MR EINGORN: Yes. Cone back for
mar quee sign. Gkay. Do we have a second on this
notion with conditions?

VI CE- CHAI RMAN STILL: | second that

nmotion with conditions.
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MR EINGORN: W have a second. W'l
take a roll-call vote. Chairnman Hance.
CHAI RVAN HANCE:  Yes.
MR EINGORN: Vice-Chairman Still.
VI CE- CHAI RVAN STI LL:  Yes.
El NGORN: Ms. Al ston.

MS. ALSTON:  No.

MR, EINGORN:. Ms. Rivera.

MS. R VERA: No.

MR EINGORN: Ms. Moss.

MS. MOSS:  Yes.

MR EINGORN: Ms. Mason.

MS. MASON:  No.

El NGORN: We have a 3-3 tie. You

need a quorum | never had a tie before. You are

maki ng nme do |egal research on the spot.

So I'mreading fromthe 2015 Edition of
New Jer sey Zoning and Land Use Adm ni strati on,
WIlliam M Cox and Stuart R Koening. This is the
2015 Edition. Section 20-4 states: In those
applications for devel opnent in which a sinple
majority vote would suffice, a tie vote on a notion
to approve the application anounts to a denial of the
application per N J.S. A 40: 55D 9(a).

So because there's a tie vote, the
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application would be denied. |'msorry.

MR EINGORN:.  Sorry M. |zzo. Thank you
for com ng out.

MR 1ZZG  \What was the notion that was
vot ed upon?

MR EINGORN: There was a notion to

approve with conditions. The conditions were a 'no
loitering' sign and then approval for the marquee
sign above the front door. The notion received three
votes in favor and three opposed so there was a tie
vote of 3 to 3 whichis a first for ne in 11 years.

MR CHElI KH: Thank you.

MR EINGORN: The next matter is 537
Mar ket Street Properties.

MR 1ZZO Charles lzzo for applicant 537
Mar ket Properties, LLC

MR EINGORN: Wuld you raise your right
hand, pl ease.

MARI LYN ORLANDO, having first been duly
sworn/affirmed, was exam ned and testified as
fol | ows:

MR EINGORN: Pl ease state your nane and

address for the record.
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M5. ORLANDO My nane is Marilyn Ol ando.
And the address is 12 Hillcrest Avenue, Lodi, New
Jersey 07644.

MR 1ZZO Ms. Ol ando, we're here about
the property at 537 Market Street. And that's
strictly across fromthe building where we're neeting
t oni ght ?

M5. ORLANDO. That's correct.

MR 1ZZO. Do you own the conpany who is
t he applicant here?

M5. ORLANDO. Yes, | do. | amthe owner.

MR 1ZZ0O.  And when did your conpany
acquire this building at 537 Market Street?

MS5. ORLANDO We did the closing Decenber
20, 2023.

MR 1ZZO. And when you acquired the
buil di ng, was it occupied or enpty?

MS. ORLANDO  Cccupi ed.

MR 1ZZO  And by what kind of tenants
was it occupied?

M5. ORLANDO. We had four residential
tenants and a few students and | still have two of
t hose and a pharmaci st who had that buil ding going
back to 2021. So five of them were occupi ed.

MR 1ZZO  So obviously, the pharnacy is




© o0 ~N o o b~ w N -

T R N T R T N T e e e T e N e o N
O N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N B O

43

on the first floor on the Market Street side; is that
true?

M5. ORLANDO That's correct, yes.

MR 1ZZO  And that business was opened
and operating when you cl osed and acquired the
bui | di ng?

MS. ORLANDO Absolutely. | do have
copies of the |l ease fromthe prior owner, yes.

MR 1ZZ0. Do you have any connection to
t he pharnmacy business at all?

M5. ORLANDO. | do not.

MR 1ZZ0 Do you know when that store
opened on Market Street?

M5. ORLANDO What | know of, a previous
bar ber shop being there for nore than 20 years. And
t hen changing to a pharmacy nmany years ago. | know
for sure because | have the lease. In 2021 that was
a pharnmacy al ready.

MR 1ZZO  You submitted a picture to
Board that shows a three-story brick building and it
says Canden Pharnmacy on the facade?

MS. ORLANDO  Yes.

MR 1ZZO  And you tal ked about
resi dential occupants. And how are the apartnents

laid out in relation to the pharmacy?
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M5. ORLANDO  Absolutely. So on the
first floor is divided. On the front is the
phar macy, about 600, 700 square. Then you have the
hal | way, the stairs. And then in the back is
Apartnment 1-R

Then you go to the second fl oor and you
have a studio. And then on the left to the stairs
there is Apartnent 2-F. And this one has two
bedr oons and one bathroom Then you go to the third
floor and it's only one apartnment with two bedroons
and one bathroom And they all have good exits to
fire escapes.

MR 1ZZ0.  They all have what?

M5. ORLANDO Exits to fire escapes.

MR 1ZZO0 So did you build those
apartnents or were they laid out and set up when you
acquired the buil ding?

M5. ORLANDO They were | aid out.
| haven't done any structural changes what soever to
t he buil di ng.

MR 1ZZO. Were they occupi ed when you
acquired title?

M5. ORLANDO Yes, they were occupied;
all of them

MR 1ZZO  So you're tal king about one,
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two, three, four apartnents, all occupied?

MS. ORLANDO  Yes.

MR 1ZZO Are they presently occupi ed?

M5. ORLANDO Two tenants and a phar nmacy.
But they wanted to be occupied. | just couldn't do
it because | amnot. ..

MR 1ZZO  So presently you've got the
pharmacy still continuing a business?

MS. ORLANDO  Yes.

MR 1ZZ0  You' ve got two residential
tenants --

M5. ORLANDO  Absol utely.

MR 1ZZO -- that were there when you
acquired the buil ding?

M5. ORLANDO Yes, they were there.

MR 1220 Wiich apartnents did they
occupy?

M5. ORLANDO That's Apartnent 2-R and
Apart nent 3.

MR 1ZZO That's the | arge apartnent on
the third floor?

MS. ORLANDO  Yes.

MR 1ZZO. Now, did you apply to the City
to make any ki nd of physical renovati ons or changes

to the layout of the building?
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M5. ORLANDO. | did not at all.

MR 1ZZO. And do you know, is the
phar macy open every day?

M5. ORLANDO  Yes, Monday through Friday.

MR 1ZZGO  And when does their |ease
expire?

MS. ORLANDO 2026. They wanted to nmake
it longer but it's 2026.

MR 1ZZO Isn't it true that this
buil di ng which sits on Market Street right across
fromwhere we are, does not have a parking lot of its
own, right?

M5. ORLANDO. That is correct. It
doesn't have parking |ot, yes.

MR 12ZZO0. And how do your tenants and
t he custoners of the pharmacy nmanage to operate in
t hose circunstances where there's no extra parking?

M5. ORLANDO The pharnaci st has told ne
t hat he al ways been renting the parking just half of
t he block. By the way, they're naking sone
i nprovenents so he al ways parks there because he
feel s safer that way.

MR 1ZZO  You're tal king about on the
street or off the street?

M5. ORLANDO No. |It's a parking |lot
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that is in the mddle of the block; half a block from
t he buil di ng.

MR 1ZZ0O He pays to park on a
commerci al parking lot?

M5. ORLANDO He pays to park, yes, the
owner. And the other ones, they do not have cars.
have three students from Rutgers University so they
don't have cars. And in the |ease, in the
advertisenment, we say that we do not have and we do
offer any parking. And | have four people wlling to
pay the downpaynent the last nonth or so. | just
didn't want to do it. Because they say they didn't
care about parking. They didn't need any parKking.

MR 1ZZ0. And what is your intentions,
your plans, your vision for this building as you
carry it forward into the i medi ate future?

M5. ORLANDO  Absolutely. | visited two
uni versities and they were so happy to know that the
buil di ng has availability. They said we're giving
nore opportunity to students. So |I'mgoing to focus
on sone students and the people that work nearby.
They have these place here and Cooper and the
col | eges.

So | believe in towns having | ess

fumes and stuff so I'mgoing to focus on peopl e that
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do not need the parking space. And they have proven
that there is a lot of people that don't need it
because ot herw se these people are not willing to pay
t hat, including soneone who actually works here in

t he tax departnent.

MR 1ZZO. And you understand that to
operate three or actually four apartnents |like you
do, you have to register as a multi-famly | andl ord?

MS. ORLANDO  Yes.

MR 1ZZ0. And you' ve undertaken that
process. You submtted those papers to the State of
New Jersey and to the Cty; is that correct?

M5. ORLANDO That's correct. That's
when | found out that the building was not in
conpliance. So | want to bring the building into
conpliance. And | also want to get the CCO. | don't
know if I'mtal king too nuch, you let ne know But |
amin a cycle, vicious cycle, because | wanted to
respond to the rental approval. And for the rental
approval, they wanted to do sone inspections. And
t hey say, Marilyn, | would you |ike to put in another
wat er heater for the tenant and | said, okay. Do I
need a permt? He said, give ne the CCO So |
cannot get anything done for themif | don't get the

CO So that is ny vicious cycle that | have here.
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| didn't want to rent a -- one of theml
didn't rent for eight nonths waiting for these.
Because | didn't want to expose any famly being to
be evicted or sonething because, you know, | don't
know how you want to react to this application.

So if I want to nake an inprovenent, | need to have a
permt. If | need a permt, | need to have the CO
So it's just like that.

MR 1ZZ0  The inprovenent, you
specifically want to nmake i s separating the water
heat er s?

M5. ORLANDO They suggested that |
should. And | trust them

MR 1ZZO Do the tenants have separate
el ectric nmeters?

M5. ORLANDO | have four existing when |
purchased the building. The pictures are there. |
woul d |i ke to add anot her one so | can have everybody
with their own electricity.

MR 1ZZO. Who shares electric the way it
IS now?

M5. ORLANDO | have the pharmacy with a
general. So | have the 2-R  They pay their own
bill. The Apartnent 3 and Apartnent 1-R, they have

their owmn. So the only people that | need to nake
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sure is the pharnmacy and 2-F. | got to nake sure
that they are separate.

MR 1ZZO  Besi des explaining that, what
el se do you want to explain to the Board about the
benefits of continuing this operation that is
presently predating your invol venent?

M5. ORLANDO | think it's great. |
think having -- | love Canden. | started investing
in 2016 without noney. No noney. So | believe that
this building, when | saw it advertised on Zll ow,
| kind of said, well, it has character. It's in the
Cty. The university is right there. Cooper is
there. So | wanted to preserve it. | don't want to
make any changes at all. | like it the way that it
was. So having clean apartnents, because |'m going
to maintain that. |[|f you talk to the Housing, they

| ove the apartnents. Wen sonebody noves out, |

pai nt.

And if sonething has to be fixed -- when
| bought it, I didn't know that the roof was | eaking
so | imediately put a new layer to all the

apartnments. Because you don't want a building with
t hese kinds of problens. | think it's good. | think
you don't need sonething with cars. You have the

beauti ful view
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A few m nutes away, you have the
transportation. You have the buses. You got the
police. And also, one of the people that wanted to
nove there, she was living a few bl ocks away and she
said, all | have to do is ask for those permts to
park on the street.

MR 1ZZ0  They have residential parking

from--

M5. ORLANDO Residential parking. She
said |'ve been doing this all my life. | don't need
to have parking. | love the idea to have the
building to keep it nice. | love the idea of people

keeping it clean and having not to think of parking
if they work very near by. | believe in that and |
think it's good for the college. Because |like |
said, | spoke to themand they just smled. | went
to the community rental at those colleges. And they
said, bring ne the address and | will give it to the
students. So | didn't do that because | said I'min
t he process of CCO and | don't want to nove forward
wi t h anyt hi ng.

MR 1ZZO 1'd be happy to address any
gquestions that the Board has.

M5. ORLANDO Yes, please.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: | have a question. Your
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tenants, what's the ol dest -- how many years has any
of your tenants been living in that building?

M5. ORLANDO. The one in 2-R she said
she's been there forever. But | cannot -- she didn't
share with nme. She said she was living here when the
ol der, original guy was here. So | guess 20 years
maybe. But | cannot -- |'munder oath. | don't
know. She said |I've been here forever. Al | can
tell you is what | see on the | ease.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: What was on the | ease?
Was it --

M5. ORLANDO. The one that | have is the
prior year when | bought it because they renew every
year. So this one is 2023. But if you go to her
apartnent, you can see that she's been there for a
whi | e.

MS. ALSTON: |'ve wal ked by there and |
see it. The only thing is that it | ooks dated |ike
t he buil ding has been around forever. So the fact
that you said that she does live there, had |ived
there for like 20 years, when | wal ked by that
building, it reminds ne of that. Because even the
pharmacy face of it all, it looks a little dated like
it has been around like really a long tinme and it

bel ongs kind of like in the nei ghborhood.
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It would be nice to see a little bit of a
facelift if you will.

M5. ORLANDO | would love it, yeah, |ove
to do that. You tell ne what | can do and I'Il| be
happy to do that. Sonebody told ne, be careful
because it could be historical. Even the w ndows,
you know, | wanted to paint it. But | need
perm ssion to --

M5. ALSTON: To get there.

M5. ORLANDO Yes. | don't m nd making
t hose, yeah.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: So how | ong has the
phar macy been there?

M5. ORLANDO. The | ease that | have, it's
2021. | don't know before then because | asked the
person who wasn't the owner, he said, | don't know.
| was here in 2021 and the pharmacy was here. It's a
new pharmaci st there. | forgot his nane but a nice
gentleman. | have a copy of the | ease, of the prior
| ease and it's back in 2021. Yes. And when | went
to the building departnent, | checked that they do
have a permt for the sign. So they are in
conpl i ance as a busi ness.

MR EINGORN:  Any ot her questions from

t he Board? Any questions down here?
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MS. ALSTON:  No.

MR EINGORN:. QOpen to the public.

CHAI RVAN HANCE:  Yes.

MR EI NGORN:  Anybody here toni ght that
would i ke to be heard on the application of 537
Mar ket Properties, LLC? Hearing none, seeing none,
we'll close the public portion.

The applicant is here tonight seeking a
use variance approval and a bul k variance for
of f-street parking spaces for four residential units
and a pharmacy. The Board has the floor here to
di scuss the requested use and bul k variances to
include site suitability and to nmake a noti on.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN STILL: The only issue that
| saw or | heard, if | heard correct, she had to
separate out electric for two units, the pharmacy and

anot her unit?

MR EINGORN: | don't think that was a
condition. | think she was proposing to do that.
M5. ORLANDO | would like to put in

every apartnent with their own neters.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN STI LL:  Yes.

M5. ORLANDO So right now three, they
pay their own bills.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN:  And then you're going to
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do a fourth?

M5. ORLANDO. | would Iike to do the
fourth for the 2-F, yes.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: M bank is Wl ls Fargo.
That buil ding has been there forever as apartnents.
| can't say too nmuch about the pharmacy because
it's right there and it disappears. |If you see the
Wells Fargo, that building is so tiny that you'l
wal k pass wi thout know ng it.

M5. ORLANDO It's only 20 feet.

CHAl RVAN HANCE: | have been here for
about 17 years on the Zoning Board. |'mclicking
back about the pharnacies that cone to m nd.

M5. ORLANDO. There used to be a
bar bershop in the basenent before that.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: So it used to be a
bar ber shop before that.

M5. MASON: | nean, it's in the downtown
area. You're absolutely right in targeting students.
You' re absolutely right as far as fol ks having access
to transportation, wal king, not necessarily
needing -- | nmean, Cty life is not necessarily
needi ng a car.

But folks do want to be in the Cty, the

mddle of the City and they want to have housing. |
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t hink we need nore housi ng opportunities as well.
But it's already been there and so being able to
conti nue that and being able to provi de housing
especially for our students.

M5. ORLANDO | have a point there. |
say to nyself what am | adding? WIlIl, what happened
is that right now, there's no rental approval for
those. You can't feel confortable because you cannot
rent it. If | were anybody else, | would have rented
it out and this goes on and on. M/ idea is, have it
just legalized and do everything as it shoul d be.
Because how am | going to get a rental approval for
four apartnents if | don't get the CCO?

M5. MASON: We appreciate that.

MS. ORLANDO  Yes.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: |1'Il go back to the
parking. The parking --

M5. ORLANDO Can | add sonething? No?
Ckay.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: The parking, it's a
Catch 22. You have City Hall here. You have a | ot
of other businesses around and they don't have
parking either. They have public parking. So |
don't see an issue with that. W do have |l egs so we

can wal k back and forth. Housing, we do need
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apartnments. W do need them And that's been there
for a while. That's ny take on that.

| "' m happy that she wants to go forward
and add another electric and a hot water heater and
all that stuff which shows she's a great tenant, and
taking care of the building with painting and all of
that stuff because you know what we've been up
agai nst so nmany ti nes.

MS5. ORLANDO You all are invited to go
and see it.

CHAIl RMAN HANCE: | tell everybody, |
al ways drop by. Wenever | pass, | always go by.

M5. MASON: Well, M. Chair, if there
aren't any other coments, then | would nmake a notion
to approve.

CHAI RVAN HANCE:  Second.

MR, EINGORN:. We have a notion and a
second. W'Ill take a roll-call vote. Chairman
Hance.

CHAI RVAN HANCE:  Yes.

MR EINGORN: Vice-Chairman Still.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN STI LL:  Yes.

MR EINGORN: Ms. Al ston.

MS. ALSTON:  Yes.

MR EINGORN: Ms. Rivera.
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Rl VERA:  Yes.

El NGORN: Ms. Mbss.
MOSS:  Yes.

El NGORN:  Ms. Mason.
MASON:  Yes.

2530 2D

El NGORN: Having six in favor and
none opposed, the notion passes.

M5. ORLANDO  Thank you very nuch all.

MR EINGORN: Have a nice night.

Looks like M. Medina arrived so let's
back to that matter.

Wul d you raise your right hand, please.

| RVI NG MEDI NA, having first been duly
sworn/affirmed, was exam ned and testified as
fol | ows:

MR EINGORN: Pl ease state your nanme and
address for the record.

MR MEDINA:  Irving Medina, 110 W Center
Street, C ayton, New Jersey.

MR EINGORN: For the record, M. Payton
has al ready been sworn.

M. Medina, this is your application.
You're with M. Payton.
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MR, MEDI NA:  Yes.

MR EINGORN:. Wuld you like to call him
as a witness for this application?

MR, MEDI NA:  Yes.

MR EINGORN. Geat. M. Payton, do you
have sonething to --

MR, PAYTON: Yes. Menbers of the Board,
Tony Payton. | was here before you. You guys
previ ously approved 2513 Federal Street. W had sone
issues with that building. W're |looking to rel ocate
to 2630 Federal Street and we seek your approvals
this evening. W're here to answer any questi ons.

MR EINGORN: The applicant is here
toni ght requesting a use variance approval and a bul k
vari ance approval for off-street parking for a
cannabi s di spensary.

M. Payton, did you prepare this
appl i cati on packet?

MR PAYTON:. Yes.

MR EINGORN. Geat. |'mshow ng you
what appears to be first-floor diagram Are you
famliar with this diagranf

MR PAYTON:  Yes.

MR, EINGORN:. G eat. Does this show the

set up of how the proposed di spensary woul d | ook?
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MR PAYTON: Yes. So once you enter the

di spensary, there's a waiting area. Once we verify

that you are 21 years of age or older, we'll buzz you
into the sales floor. You'll have a short sales
floor and then you'll have a back-up office where
we'll do order fulfillment and those sorts of those

things. The product show up sort of all prepackage.
As sonebody cones in and orders them we get themto
verify ID again and then they exit the store.

MR, EINGORN: For the Board, |I'm
referring to this docunent here. It looks |like to be
a 3-Drendering. So pointing to the bottom part of
this rendering, is this the entrance area?

MR PAYTON:  Yes.

MR EINGORN:. Geat. And this next area,
this would be the waiting area?

MR PAYTON: That's the waiting area.

MR EINGORN:. Great. And then behind
that, that's where the retail part would be?

MR PAYTON:. Yes.

MR EINGORN. And then is this suppose to
be a desk?

MR. PAYTON: Yes. That's sort of a --
it's Ilike waist |evel where you have to have --

that's sort of a restricted access area.
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MR EINGORN. Okay. And then -- is this
where the registers woul d be?

MR PAYTON: The registers would be where
t hose desks area.

MR EINGORN:. Woul d the peopl e who
purchase their itens, would they exit back to the
front of the building or will it be a separate
entrance?

MR PAYTON: They woul d exit back through
to the front of the buil ding.

MR EINGORN. Okay. Geat. And then
behi nd that, behind the registered area there's
anot her couple of roons. The one directly behind
that, what would that be?

MR PAYTON. That would be your order
fulfillnment.

MR EINGORN: Can you expl ain what that

MR PAYTON: Wen sonebody cones in and,
let's say, they order Gunm es, for instance, one of
t he workers would go to the storage area where the
Gunmm es are kept and they would put that order in a
bag to be given to that custoner and brought up to
the register.

MR EINGORN:. Geat. And then there's a




© o0 ~N o o b~ w N -

T R N T R T N T e e e T e N e o N
O N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N B O

62

coupl e of other roons identified here. Can you tell
nme what they are?

MR PAYTON: Sure. You have you safe
room and your security room

MR, EINGORN. Then what's the difference
bet ween the safe roomand the security roonf

MR PAYTON: The safe roomis where al
the products are stored overnight and all your sort
of your nonetary itens. And your security roomis
where you house all of the screens for the caneras
that are all over the building.

MR EI NGORN. Wbul d you have a security
guar d?

MR PAYTON: Yes.

MR EINGORN. And can you tell us a
little bit about deliveries?

MR PAYTON: So deliveries wll cone
t hrough the back. And we have set sort of delivery
times and hours. So your average sort of delivery
woul d be not unli ke Amazon but sort of in a box-type
form

MR EINGORN:.  So you woul dn't have big
rigs? No big rigs or 18-wheel ers?

MR, PAYTON: No, no, not at all.

MR EINGORN: Wuld you be storing a | ot
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of itens, products, whatever they're commonly
referred to?

MR PAYTON: | would say you' d have sort
of 30 SKUs. Your products would get into the
hundreds. | guess you could quantify that as a |ot.

MR EINGORN:. Is this property |arge
enough to store all the stuff you'll need to store?

MR PAYTON: Yes.

MR EINGORN. M. Medina, |I'mshow ng you
a docunent which says, Purchase and Sal e Agreenent.
s this your contract to purchase the property?

MR MEDI NA:  Yes.

MR EINGORN:  And you signed this
contract?

MR MEDI NA:  Yes.

MR EINGORN: Can you just tell us a
little bit about what other uses nay be near this
property; what are the neighbors across the street?

MR, PAYTON: There's a chinese store.
There's a building that's currently vacant
i medi ately to the right. And then there's a parking
| ot, check cashing. There's a liquor store three
doors down.

M5. MASON: |s there a hair-braiding

store there.
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MR. PAYTON: Yes. The current use is a
hai r - br ai di ng sal on.

M5. MASON: It's a business corridor.

MR EINGORN: So right now the property
is being used for hair braiding?

MR, MEDI NA:  Yes.

MR EINGORN. Got it. |Is There a parking
| ot that serves this parking?

MR PAYTON: There is a parking | ot
that's one door over that's owned by the fol ks that
run the check-cashi ng busi ness.

MR EINGORN: Okay. But that's not
publ i ¢ parki ng?

MR PAYTON: That's not public parking.
There's on-street parking. W've reached out to
them They said, once you get your approvals, we'll
| ease sone spaces to you.

MR EINGORN:. D d they specify?

MR PAYTON: | think we're | ooking to
| ease about ei ght spaces, but we don't have a
contract yet. They're waiting for us to kind of pass
this hurtle to get there.

M5. RIVERA: |s CanCare there too?

MR PAYTON:. CantCare is. | would say

that's probably seven or eight doors down. It's
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cl oser to the corner.
M5. RIVERA: Yes. You have CantCare and
t hen you have a store and then you have a restaurant.
M5. MASON: Do you al ready have a
i cense?
MR PAYTON:  Yes.
M5. MASON: So you have to go through the

approval for zoning in order for the Gty to approve

it?

MR PAYTON:  Yes.

M5. MASON: Is it amcroor isit a --

MR PAYTON: It is a traditional.

MR EINGORN: How many square feet is the
bui | di ng?

MR PAYTON. The building is --

MASON: O at |east --
MR PAYTON. 2,500 square feet -- 2,800

square feet.
M5. MASON: And the safe area, does that
i nclude a vault?
MR PAYTON:  Yes.
VI CE- CHAI RVAN STI LL: How does the size,
t he square footage conpare fromthe | ast property you
were in? You said you noved.

MR PAYTON: The last property | thought
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was a little too big. The |ast property was 5,500
square feet. This one is about 3,000 square feet.

VI CE- CHAl RMAN STILL: So what were the
issues with that property that made you nove. | know
you had sone issues or sonet hing.

MR PAYTON: Part of the issue was, we
had a contracted price and the owner decided that
contracted price was not sufficient and nearly
demandi ng doubl e the price.

MS. ALSTON: | think you' re about
2,000 feet away from East Side H gh School. Does
anyone recall what the --

M5. MASON: It's 250 feet.

MS. ALSTON:. Two hundred and fifty feet
so that's plenty --

M5. MASON: Yes, from any school, any
park, any childcare, any church.

M5. ALSTON: So this is about 2,000.

M5. MASON:. So | don't think there's
anything in that area that is identified as a church
or the school that's 250 feet away.

M5. ALSTON: Wthin that area. Ckay.

Then as far as the delivery, | think |
heard you say that they're comng in through the

back. Wbuld that be for your cash pick up as well
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and al so --

MR PAYTON: Yes. Cash pick up, product
delivery will be through the back door.

MB. ALSTON: Ckay.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: |'mquite sure you're

goi ng to have caneras and |ighting?

MR PAYTON: Yes. There are caneras that
wi Il cover sort of every square foot of the building
and sort of the exterior as well.

MR EINGORN:  Any ot her questions?

M5. MASON:. No. | think there's a
question just around -- | think there's a daycare
center but | don't think it's 250 feet. | think it's
nore --

M5. RIVERA: It's around the corner

M5. MASON. It's nore, right?

M5. RIVERA: Yes. |It's called Respond.

MR EINGORN: Are you aware of how many

feet that is away fromthe property?

MR, PAYTON: That woul d be closer to 450
feet away.

MR EINGORN: So you're confident that
it's outside of the zone?

MR PAYTON: Yes. So the previous

| ocati on that you guys approved is 436 feet away from
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this one.

MR EINGORN:  Any | ast questions?

MR PAYTON: So it's a block up the
street.

MR EINGORN:  Any ot her questions from
the Board? No. Qpen to the public.

CHAl RMVAN HANCE:  Yes.

MR EINGORN:  Anybody here toni ght that
woul d i ke to be heard on the application for 2630
Federal Street? Hearing and seeing none, we'll close
t he public portion.

The applicant is here tonight seeking a
use variance for a cannabis dispensary and a bul k
vari ance for off-street parking. The Board should do
a di scussion of the Positive and Negative Criteria
for both variances and nake a noti on.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN STILL: | think it's great
that that part of that business corridor is being
built up. [It's nuch needed in that specific area.
| think a couple of things you' re going to deal with
obviously is parking which is what they're here for
cause there's really no parking in that area. And
t hen how you control the traffic. You say The
loitering basically is what that area deals with and

has been dealing with for years. How do you deal
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with the loitering?

MR PAYTON: | think that area needs a
busi ness i nprovenent district. And we'd be happy to
sort of help junp start that. W tal ked about that
wi th Council man Marti nez.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN STI LL: Have you al
spoke -- you said, you've spoken to other businesses
in the area?

MR PAYTON:. Quite a few.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN STILL: | nean, | do
believe it needs a facelift. That's ny take on it.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: That area does need a
facelift. But he's been here before. And are you
still doing the factory back?

MR PAYTON. Yes. W just secured the
financing to build the factory. So we'll supply a
decent anmount of our own product.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: This is his third tinme
back, | guess, or fourth tinme here and he's sticking
with it the aw which | appreciate. And that area
definitely needs a facelift. It used to be a shoe
store there many noons ago. | grew up there. | grew
up on Mtchell Street so |'mvery famliar with the
area. |If you're going to work with the policing in

t he area, keep the people noving and not sitting
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t here and hanging out, that's definitely a plus for
t hat area.

MR PAYTON: Many, nany noons ago | had
an office on Frankford Avenue so I'mfamliar with
t hat el enent.

MR EINGORN:. Ms. Mason, you were saying
sonet hi ng?

M5. MASON: OCh, no. | was just agreeing
with our Chair and our Vice-Chair that it's a
busi ness corridor. It neets all the qualifications.
There's no issues as far as like the distance between
any school or anything like that. And there's
nothing slated as far as a dispensary in that area so
it doesn't feel like it's an oversaturation of any
sort even though the Gty has approved up to 20
licenses as it pertains to dispensary. But | would
definitely say that it's sonething that's needed;
anot her busi ness, another mnority business as well.

MR, EINGORN: Comments done?

M5. ALSTON: No. |I'mjust happy that
t hey found a new place and that they' re back on track
on openi ng a new cannabi s di spensary in that area
since we've actually gone through all the steps to
get it approved in the Gty.

And | think it's great to see anot her
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busi ness up and comng. And | know that the industry
is highly regulated. So as far as security and the
things that are going to required of them they still
have a long road ahead of them So | think this is
good.

MR EINGORN. | don't see any signage
proposed so you m ght have to cone back on that.

MR PAYTON: Absolutely.

M5. MASON: If there are no other
comments, |I'd like to make a notion to approve.

M5. ALSTON: | second.

MR, EINGORN:. We have a notion and a
second. |'ll take a roll-call vote. Chairnman Hance.

CHAl RMVAN HANCE:  Yes.

MR, EINGORN: Vice-Chairman Still.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN STI LL:  Yes.
El NGORN: Ms. Al ston.
ALSTON:  Yes.
El NGORN:  Ms. Rivera.
Rl VERA:  Yes.
El NGORN: Ms. Mbss.
MOSS:  Yes.
El NGORN: Ms. Mason.
MASON:  Yes.

2P 3025353

El NGORN: Having six in favor and
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none opposed, the notion passes. Have a great night.

MR MEDI NA:  Thank you.

MR PAYTON: Thank you.

MR EINGORN: The next matter is Vision
Capital Investnents, LLC, 840 Haddon Avenue. (Good
eveni ng, Counsel.

Let the record reflect that counsel has
provided the Board with a one-page summary entitl ed
Single-Famly Hone Into Two-Fam |y Duplex. Wuld you
like to mark this as A-1?

MR SARI N Yes.

(Wher eupon Exhibit No. A-1, Summary
entitled Single-Famly Hone Into Two- Fam |y Dupl ex,
was marked for identification.)

MR SARIN. Good eveni ng everyone. My
nane is Ed Sarin. |1'man attorney from Over mayer
representing the applicant, Vision Capital
| nvest nents and Frederick Snead who is the principal
owner of it. Along with ne tonight Al yce Johnson who
is an architectural consultant and she will be doing
nost of the testinony here tonight. M. Johnson has
appeared before this Board on numerous occasi ons.

She al so has three others testinonies that she'll be
testifying for us tonight.

This is an appeal froma zoning denial,
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a zoning permt denial. W're seeking four C 1 bulk
vari ances for the mninmum/l ot size, the | ot depth,
the ot wdth and these are all preexisting uses and
they're still going to be the sane. And basically
what this project is, is to convert a single-famly
honme i nto a dupl ex.

M. Snead acquired this property by
foreclosure in Septenber of 2023. And since then,
that property has been vacant. So basically the idea
of this project is to redevelop it and nake it | ook
nice in the comunity. So wth that, | wll turn it
over to Ms. Johnson for testinony about the project.

MR EI NGORN. Ms. Johnson, would you
rai se your right hand, please.

ALYCE JOHNSON, having first been duly
affirmed, was exam ned and testified as foll ows:

MR EINGORN: Pl ease state your nane and
address for the record. Business address is fine.

MS. JOHNSON: Al yce Johnson, 423 Market
Street, Canden New Jersey 08102.

MR EINGORN: For the record, you're an
architectural consultant; is that correct?

MS. JOHNSON:  Yes.
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MR EINGORN:. What would you like to tel
us about this project?

M5. JOHNSON:. This is 840 Haddon Avenue.
And | believe this is pretty nuch what you have on
file. 1t's an existing structure; single-famly
honme; and currently vacant as the attorney nenti oned.
This is the site that it sits on. W're not changi ng
anyt hing, no additions or anything. It pretty much
sits on 65 percent of the property if not nore.

We're converting a single-famly hone
into a duplex where on the first floor will consists
of Unit 1. The second floor would consist of Unit 2.
Both units will be two bedroom apartnents with a
l'iving space, kitchen and one bat hroom one ful
bat hroom and a | aundry room very small |aundry room
There will be one main entrance to the structure.

And they both cone through the sane entrance.

Once they enter their main entrance, the

first floor will go to your right and to your |eft,
t he second floor will go straight up the stairs. The
second floor will have their door right there on the

main | evel and right into their apartnent on the
second floor. Currently, there is no rear exit to
the building. That's pretty much it. It's 900

square feet. The basenent will be the nmain storage
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for the first unit. Not |liveable space. Just
st or age.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: | have one questi on.
You said there's no back exit?

M5. JOHNSON: There's no back exit prior
or --

CHAI RVAN HANCE: So the first floor, you
only can get into the front? |Is there an exit?

M5. JOHNSON: There's no side exit.
There's a three-foot all eyway, the standard rowhouse,
a three-foot side wal kway. This is a party wall for
a rowhouse.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN STILL: So the plan to
enter through the front and there will be two
entrances through the front door?

M5. JOHNSON:  Yes. So they'll cone onto
t he porch and once they enter that main door, the
first floor would enter to your left. Then the
second unit would enter straight on up the stairway.
So there's a four-foot |anding. Once you open the
door to the second floor, you' re on a four-foot
| anding to enter the stairway to the second fl oor.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: |s there any type of
fire escape on the outside? |'mcurious because you

have them coming in through the front. So do they
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| eave through the front al so?

M5. JOHNSON: Yes. Leave through the
front.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: |'mjust seeing it as,
what if there's a fire in the front? How can they
exit?

MS. JOHNSON: Well, there are egress
wi ndows for the second floor, and the first and
second floor. Regul ated egress wi ndows for each one
of them This is twd-stories high. That's an
aver age per hone.

V5. MOSS: None of the hones have a back

yar d?

MS. JOHANSON: |'msorry?

M5. MOSS: None of those honmes have a
back yard?

M5, JOHANSON: | can't say.

M5. RIVERA: Do they have a back
yar d?

M5. JOHNSON:  Very m ni num back yard;
about five or ten feet.

M5. RIVERA: How do they get in there?

M5. JOHNSON: They will enter into the
first -- oh, there is a wal kway of the side of the

house; a three-foot wal kway to enter to the rear of
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t he buil di ng.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: So the second bedroom
that's a wi ndow back there, | guess?

M5. JOHNSON: Yes, that's a w ndow, an
egress w ndow for each bedroom And this is the
| ayout for the duplex is pretty nmuch the sane as the
rowhone, single-famly hone. Wat we're adding is
pretty nmuch the -- because the second floor was three
bedroons but we're just taking out one of the
bedroons and nmaking a living room and kitchen space.
It's pretty much preexisting but we're just adding
the kitchen and living space for the dupl ex.

MR SARIN. And Ms. Johnson, they're
goi ng to be upgrading everything in there, correct?

M5. JOHNSON: Oh, yes. |It's a total gut
and rehab for the entire building.

MS. RIVERA: For this one here, are you
saying they that they m ght put a door in the back?

M5. JOHNSON: | don't see why they
coul dn't.

MR. EINGORN: You can nmake that a
condition of approval to add rear egress.

M5. RIVERA: Because, | nean, if there's
afireinthe front, that's what gets ne.

M5. MASON:. Is it currently a single
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home?

MS. JOHNSON:  Yes.

MR SARIN. And it has been vacant. It
was foreclosed on in 2023. And before that it was
all vacant for a while so they acquired the property
in 2023. It has been like that so they' ve been
t hi nking of how to develop that and that's why we are
here now.

Ms. Johnson, can you tal k about the
parking just briefly? There's no on-site parking,
ri ght?

M5. JOHNSON: There's no on-site parking.
It's pretty much rowhouses. The one spot that's in
front of the house. R ght across the street there's
a cenetery which is pretty nmuch all free parKking.
First conme; first serve up and down the street.

MR SARIN. And it's close to public
transportation too, right?

M5. JOHNSON:  Yes, public transportation.
The bus stop is right at the corner. The
Transportati on Center is wal king distance.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: |I'mfamliar with the
area. It does need a facelift desperately. |I'm
tal ki ng about bl ocks. But ny main i ssue would be an

exit fromthe rear in case of a fire.
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MR SARIN. Right.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: | f that porch catches on
fire, there's no way to get out, otherw se you have
to junp froma window. And there is no fire escape.

MR. SARIN. There is access |like on the
side there so that would go back --

CHAl RMAN HANCE: Sone type of an exit.

MR SARIN. Correct. | would just ask
for a condition of approval for that.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: | f the Board decides to
make a notion, they can condition the approval upon
addi ng rear egress.

MR EINGORN:  Any nore questions for the
Board? No. Qpen to the public.

CHAl RMVAN HANCE:  Yes.

MR EINGORN:  Anybody fromthe public tha
woul d i ke to be heard on the application regarding
840 Haddon Avenue?

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER  Yes, | do.

MR EINGORN: Woul d you raise your right
hand, pl ease.

PAMELA DI CKSON, having first been duly
sworn/affirmed, was exam ned and testified as

foll ows:
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MR EINGORN: Pl ease state your nane and
address for the record.

MS. DI CKSON: Panel a Di ckson, 1023 Spruce
Street.

MR EINGORN:. What were you sayi ng?

MS. DICKSON: Well, we basically canme
cause we wanted to make sure it wasn't going to be
i ke a hal fway house. We didn't know what they were
going to do with the property that was there. That's
basically what we was here for. As far as naking it
into an apartnent or whatever, we're all right with
that. Geat.

MR EINGORN: Thanks for com ng.

M5. DI CKSON:  You're wel cone.

MR EINGORN:  Any Board nenbers want to
add anyt hi ng?

M5. RI VERA: Just the door.

MR EINGORN:. W got that. Counsel, do
you have any cl osing statenents?

MR SARIN. | do not. | would nmake a
nmotion. | don't have anything el se.

MR EINGORN. We will close the public
portion as well. | didn't see anybody el se who wants

to cone up just for procedural sake.
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So the applicant is here tonight
requesting four bul k variances for mninum| ot w dth,
| ot depth, lot size and off-street-parking. The
Board should do a discussion of the Positive and
Negative Criteria and nmake a notion. | heard
di scussion of a condition for rear egress so if
there's a notion approve, that could al so be
consi der ed.

CHAI RMAN HANCE: |'Il say that this is
sonet hing positive. Hopefully it turns into a virus.
Canden is com ng back and they're com ng back strong
and fast. So we need apartnents; we need houses
because Canden is going to be overgrown. W have a
| ot happening especially in this area. This area has
been beat down for years. And it's good to see
sonet hi ng new and fresh comng into that area and not
an eye sore.

"Il say and |'ve been saying it ever
since. | just had two nore fires in ny
nei ghbor hood because of enpty houses just sitting
there idle. And | just learned that it doesn't have
to be a winter to have a fire. W have fires in the
summertine also. W just had a fire |ast week. But
| think this is sonething very positive and hopeful |y

we get nore of this in Canden.
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VI CE- CHAI RVMAN STILL: Yeah, | nean,
facelifts and goi ng back on what the Chairman said, a
facelift, you know, that area needs it and | want to
put a notion to approve with the condition of the
rear egress.

MR EINGORN. We have a notion to approve
it wth a condition of rear egress.

CHAl RMAN HANCE:  Second.

MR EINGORN: [I'Il take a roll-call vote.
Chai rman Hance.

CHAI RVAN HANCE:  Yes.

MR EINGORN:  Vice-Chairman Still.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN STILL:  Yes.

MR EINGORN: Ms. Al ston.
MS. ALSTON:  Yes.

MR, EINGORN:. Ms. Rivera.

MS. RIVERA:  Yes.

MR EINGORN: Ms. Moss.

MS. MOSS: Yes.

MR EINGORN: And Ms. Mason.
MS. MASON:.  Yes.

MR

El NGORN: Having six in favor and
none opposed, the notion passes.
MR EINGORN: Thank you, Counsel.

The next nmatter is Jordan & Jordan,
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550-554 Line Street.

MR EINGORN: Good eveni ng, Counsel.

MR SUNKETT: Good eveni ng, Counsel.

MR EINGORN:  Woul d you raise your right
hand, pl ease.

SHAMERE JORDAN, having first been duly
sworn/affirmed, was exam ned and testified as
fol | ows:

MR EINGORN: Pl ease state your nanme and
address for the record.

MR, JORDAN: Shanere Jordan, 2105 S. 7th
Street, Canden.

MR, SUNKETT: Good evening. For the
record, Jason Sunkett on behalf of the applicant,
Jordan & Jordan, LLC. But the sole nenber of the LLC
is tony left, M. Jordan.

This matter conmes before the Board and
we're proposing three duplex units. | handed out a
proj ect sunmary and sone photographs. | guess | can
mark that as Exhibit 1.

(Wher eupon Exhibit No. A-1, Project
Sunmmary and Phot ographs, was narked for

identification.)
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MR SUNKETT: Ms. Johnson is going to
shows us sone things and we'll mark themin sequence.

Agai n, we cone before the Board for
construction of three duplexes. W're seeking c(1)
bul k vari ances which are needed for | ot w dth, depth,
front yard, rear yard, side yard setbacks and nax
I npervi ous coverage. If | may, 1'd like Ms. Alyce
Johnson to set the table for us in terns of what we
have here. She remains sworn in?

MR EI NGORN: Yes, you're already sworn.

M5. JOHNSON: We're here for 550-554 Line
Street. W' re proposing three dupl exes on three
different lots. And this is currently vacant | and.
It's pretty much a 900 square foot each floor which
consists of -- the first floor will consist of the
first floor and the basenent of |iveabl e space for
t he basenent. And the second floor, one unit as
well. So it wll be two units. The first floor wll
have |iveabl e space and a basenent.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: So explain the
basenent .

M5. JOHNSON: So the basenent will
consi st of two bedroons and a basenent with |iving
space and a restroom and cl oset space. This is

com ng down into the basenent and going into a
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bedroomtwo or bedroomthree. And then this living
room space, famly space to hang out and then a
closet, a restroomfor those living in the basenent,
as well as another bedroom There are egress well
wi ndows and |iving space and bedroons, one in the
front of the building and one at the end of the
bui l ding i n each bedroom

CHAI RVAN HANCE: So how nmany square feet
are the dupl exes?

MS. JOHNSON: It's about 900 square feet
per fl oor.

MR SUNKETT: Can you tell us about the
entrance? Is it one door or is it two separate doors
for each unit as well as the rear exits as well?
They probably want to know about that.

M5. JOHNSON: So the sane, front stairs.

Both will have the sane entrance. Go to the hallway
and to your left will be for unit one. And the
stairs for Unit 2 will be the upstairs. Once you get

upstairs, the nmain entrance to the second floor unit
will be on the second floor. The stairs will be open
then they' Il enter the second apartnent to get to the
second floor. Al units consist of two bedroons

The first unit actually consists of three

bedr oons. Fl oor one, there will be one bedroom on
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the first floor and two bedroons in the basenent. It
wi Il consist of living roomspace, kitchen area,

bat hroom and just pretty nuch just open space. So
the first unit has three bedroons, kitchen, |iving
room |iving space and two bat hs.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: So the house on the
right side is already there. Not those but | was
there today and there's a house there.

MS. JOHNSON:  Yes.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: |Is that going to be
agai nst that house?

M5. JOHNSON: It's three feet. | believe
we have a three-foot gap.

MR EINGORN: Is there an existing
al l eyway there?

M5. JOHNSON:  Yes -- no all eyway.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: So you're right on the
corner, right?

MS. JOHNSON:  Yes.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: Does that go all the way
back to the next street?

MS. JOHNSON:  No.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: | saw that there were
trucks parked and stuff in there.

VR. JORDAN: No. It was a trailer there.
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MR EINGORN. Is there an all eyway behi nd
t he property?

MR JORDAN. It was there when | bought
t he property.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN STI LL: Do you know what's
being stored in the trailer?

MR JORDAN: It was |like old wood and
stuff like that.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN STILL: But you al ready
renoved it?

MR JORDAN:  Yeah.

CHAl RVAN HANCE: The trailer?

MR JORDAN: No, not the trailer. But
the stuff that was in there it was all wood.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: But today there's a
truck in there, a noving truck. There's a trailer
over here.

MR, JORDAN:  Huh- huh.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: But |'m just not happy.
That's a very tight spot. That's why | asked about

the square footage. It's super-tight on that corner.
|"'mjust saying. |'mnot an architect but... As I
stood there today, |I'mlike, how are they are going

to put three dupl exes here.

MR JORDAN. It was already three houses
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exi sting there before.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: Wow.

MR EINGORN: It |ooks to be three tax
lots, right? If you |look at the highlighted --

CHAl RMAN HANCE: Li nes com ng down.

MR EINGORN. Right. It |looks to be
three separate lots; is that correct?

MR JORDAN:  Yes.

MS. JOHNSON:  Probably about 20 years ago
there were structures there.

MS. ALSTON: Have you | ooked at the
stormmvater map and all of that? It was recently
updated. Have you checked for stormwater or drainage
of any flooding issue in that area when you did
your --

M5. JOHNSON: It's not currently in a
fl ood zone.

MS. ALSTON: It's not?

MB. JOHNSON: Ri ght .

CHAl RMAN HANCE: There's no yard back
t here.

M5. RIVERA: | can't say 100 percent but
before I think it was in a flood area cause these
houses use to flood before. That's why people didn't

buy them when they first did that housing thing.
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M5. ALSTON:. And | know they recently
updat ed t hat map.

MS. Rl VERA: Yes.

M5. ALSTON: | just did not |ook at it.
You may want to take a good | ook.

MR. JORDAN: That area has never been a
fl ood area.

MS. JOHNSON: Right now there's no new
devel opnent in that particular area right now.

They' re just knocki ng down houses there.

MS. ALSTON: Yes, they are.

MR EINGORN: Wiy don't we ask this. Do
you have insurance for the property?

MR JORDAN: Yes.

MR EINGORN. You do. Were you required
to obtain flood insurance?

MR JORDAN: | think all that cones with
the flood insurance and all that stuff. For ne
growng up in that area, | never knew that the area
was a flood area.

MR EINGORN: But you're not paying
separate flood insurance, correct?

MR, JORDAN: No.

MR EINGORN: Ms. Johnson, | think a

guesti on was asked about the rear yard from one of
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t he nenbers did speak to that.

M5. JOHNSON: Yes. For our rear yard
we're keeping ten feet of space for our rear yard.
And al so, the average rowhone is pretty much on the
property line. So we are doing a setback of ten feet
fromthe property line. So the existing house that's
there's now, wll be ten feet behind that house.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: You're not going to
match this up with the house that's there?

MS. JOHANSON: No. And actually that's --
this should be the picture.

M5. JOHNSON: This is the setback.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: |'m just curious the
reason why.

MR EINGORN: Is that to accommpdate the
steps? |Is there steps?

M5. JOHNSON: Yes, to accommopdate the
steps. And then one unique -- you tal ked about
egress and things like that. For the first floor
this is the basenent or perineter of the foundati on.
If you notice, the second floor -- this is the first
floor and the second floor juts out to give it extra
l'iving space and al so to acconmobdate the setback that
we kind of took away from.. And then also in the

rear for the second floor, there was a deck so that's
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our egress for the second floor as well. And a
sliding door wi ndow off the deck. One story up

VI CE- CHAI RVAN HANCE: I's there enough
par ki ng for everybody?

MR JORDAN:. Yes, there's plenty of
par ki ng.

MR, SUNKETT: It's across fromthe
library, right, which is not in use; is that correct?

MR JORDAN:  Yes.

MR, SUNKETT: Is this the front
Vi ew?

M5. JOHNSON: This is the rear view of
t he deck and egress w ndow wel | s.

MR EINGORN: So you're proposing
bal conies in the rear?

M5. JOHNSON:  Yes.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: | want to go back to the
parking. Talk to ne about the parking over there?

MR JORDAN: There's on-street parKking.

CHAI RMAN HANCE: It's like public
par ki ng?

MR, JORDAN: Yes.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: But that's too small.
You can't park on that side street.

MR, JORDAN: On what side?
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CHAI RVAN HANCE: That little street I|ike
on --

MR. JORDAN: Not on the side street.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: Like right in front of
the hone or across the street fromthe hone?

MR JORDAN: Yes.

VI CE- CHAl RVAN HANCE: What's across the
street fromthe hone?

MR, JORDAN: Across the street used to be
a library.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: That old library that's
been there forever.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: Beauti ful architect that

i brary.

M5. JOHNSON: That's it for now.

MR SUNKETT: Any questions?

M5. ALSTON: My only concern is what |
said. It's going to be -- | think it's great. W
need t he dupl exes; we need the hones. | think having

themin the area is going to add value to the area.

| al so think you should protect what you build,
right? |1 think it's inportant that you check on that
drai nage to nake sure that you are prevented from
flood or getting into or things |like that. That

woul d be ny only concern. Oher than that, | don't
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any questi ons.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN STILL: The only question
have, have you spoken to the nei ghbors? How do the
nei ghbors feel about it?

MR JORDAN. The nei ghbors are pretty
good. The guy that |ives next door, he's happy that
|"'mtrying to do sonething with it.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: My | ast question is, on
that little alleyway side are you going to put
lights on the side of your building there --

MR JORDAN: To brightened it little
bit.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: ~-- cause it's a little
dark around that corner.

MR JORDAN: It's going to be bright. I'm
going to put sone lights up on the side.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: You have to go there and
|l ook at it. But when you go and |look at it, it's
going to be pitch dark.

MR JORDAN. No, there's a street |ight
t here.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: |'m from Canden and
those street lights is not |lighting especially when
the trees grow and the | eaves grow. | was there

today. | would put sone type of foot lights.




© o0 ~N o o b~ w N -

T R N T R T N T e e e T e N e o N
O N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N B O

94

MR JORDAN. Put lights on the outside.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: One in the front and one
in the back of the building just to give a little
light on the path that you're tal king about.

M5. JOHNSON: There's no wi ndows on the
nei ghbors si de.

MR SUNKETT: Any ot her questions?

MR EINGORN:  Any ot her questions?

M5. MUHAMVAD: So the spacing between the
house that you're going to build and the house that's
al ready existing, are you going to put up a fence so
that the public can't wal k through it?

MR JORDAN. On the back side you're
sayi ng?

M5. MUHAMVAD: On the side in between the
house that's existing, are you going to put --

MR JORDAN: Yes.

M5. ALSTON: So M. Chairman, | didn't
quite hear. You were tal king about addi ng extra
lighting in the back and in the front?

CHAI RVAN HANCE:  Yes.

M5. ALSTON: Yes, | agree with that as
wel | .

MR EINGORN:  Any ot her questions?

M5. JOHNSON: To your previous question.
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The property that's on the side, that separates the
two existing, that doesn't belong to M. Jordan.

MR EINGORN: |'msorry?

M5. JOHNSON: That alleyway that wll be
created that was already there, that property does
not belong to M. Jordan.

MR EINGORN:. Onh, okay. So that's the
nei ghbor's property?

MR JORDAN. Yes. That's just like a
si dewal k.

MR EINGORN: Ckay. So you can't fence
it in cause it's not yours.

MR JORDAN: It's on the side. Just on
t he back si de.

MR EI NGORN. Got you.

M5. JOHNSON: We're going to put the
lights up there on the side.

MR EINGORN:. That's fine. Anybody in
the public here tonight that would Ii ke to be heard
on the application of 550-554 Line Street? Hearing
none and seeing none, we'll close the public portion.

Counsel , do you have any cl osing
argunment s?

MR SUNKETT: Yes, just in closing.

| believe we have net the Special Reasons
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for the variance. W believe the property is suited
for the project as the chairman and ot hers have
mentioned. Basically this is a good thing to get
housing. | know the Cty's Master Plan recomrends
expandi ng housing to all classes, of course, |ower,
m ddl e and such. So we believe it's a good thing.

W want to inprove the appearance of the
nei ghborhood. Obviously, that's an enpty lot. |
think this project will add value. | think it's a
ni ce-l ooking structure and I think it would neet all
t he needs of the housing and beautifying the
community in that nature. So that's all | have.

MR EINGORN: So | will rem nd the Board
that this is an R-2 Zone. They're not requesting a
use variance because one's not required. A duplex is
a permtted use in the zone. The applicant is
i nstead requesting bulk variances related to the
undersi zed lots. R ght?

So we're talking -- the applicant is
requesting variances for lot width, ot depth, front
yard setback, rear yard setback, side yard setback,

t he m ni mum aggregate side yard setbacks and then the
maxi mum i nper vi ous coverage. And it sounds Ilike
t hese footprints will be snmaller than the nei ghboring

properties. So really you're reducing, likely
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reducing -- you can't testify that they are -- but
they're |likely reducing the inpervious coverage that
was previously there.

Ckay. So the discussion of the Positive
and Negative Criteria related to the bul k vari ances
and then a notion.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN STILL: As we continue to
build up the infrastructure in the Gty, nmuch needed
enpty |lot, put sone quality on it. He got the
approval of the community or the neighbor, that's a
plus just like the last one. | think what stands out
is that the young man i s home-grown; grew up in the
area; and he's putting back into that area that he
grew up in. That's ny take on it.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: | was there today. |
think it's a great idea. That block is also falling
down on us. It's right off of Broadway and we are
bui | di ng around Broadway. There's a lot of things
going on in that area. So this is actually a puzzle
piece that fits in there. Do nore. | was happy that
soneone took the initiative to do that because that's
a big sore eye. Get that trailer out of there; get
that truck out of there; and put soneone in there
t hat can enjoy the house or apartnent.

MR SUNKETT: That's the goal.
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VI CE- CHAI RVAN STILL: To set an exanpl e
for others that cone behind you to do the sane.

MR. JORDAN: Right.

MR, SUNKETT: Thanks.

M5. MASON: | make the notion, the first
noti on to approve.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: Isn't there a bulk
vari ance al so?

MR EINGORN: It's all bulk variances so
it's a notion to approve bul k vari ances.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: 1'Ill second it.

MR EINGORN: I'Ill take a roll-call vote.
Chai r man Hance.

CHAl RMVAN HANCE:  Yes.

MR, EINGORN: Vice-Chairman Still.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN STI LL:  Yes.
El NGORN: Ms. Al ston.
ALSTON:  Yes.
El NGORN:  Ms. Rivera.
Rl VERA:  Yes.
El NGORN: Ms. Mbss.
MOSS:  Yes.
El NGORN: Ms. Mason.
MASON:  Yes.

2P 3025353

El NGORN: Having six in favor and
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none opposed, the notion passes. Congratul ati ons.

MR SUNKETT: Thank you very nuch.

The next matter is Betty Tyson, 411
Pfeifer Street.

MR EINGORN:  Woul d you raise your right
hand, pl ease.

BETTY TYSON, having first been duly
sworn/ affirmed, was exam ned and testified as
fol | ows:

MR EINGORN: Pl ease state your nanme and
address for the record.

MS. TYSON: Betty Tyson, 69 S. Dudl ey
Street, Canden, New Jersey.

MR EINGORN: You have with you the
previously sworn, M. Johnson?

MS. TYSON:. Yes.

MR EINGORN: G eat.

And you're here tonight requesting a
three-famly dwel |ing?

MS. JOHNSON:  Yes.

MR EINGORN:. Are you the owner of the
property?

MS. JOHNSON:  Yes.
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MR, EINGORN.  You want to turn it over to
Ms. Johnson to have her do her thing?

M5. TYSON:. Yes, please.

MR EI'NGORN: That sounds good.

Ms. Johnson i s handi ng out docunent.

It's a one-page docunent and we'l|l pass sone out.
W'll mark this Exhibit A-1 to the application.

(Wher eupon Exhibit No. A-1, 1-page
docunment Entitled Duplex to Triplex, was marked for
identification.)

MR ElI NGORN:. Good eveni ng, Ms. Johnson.

M5. JOHNSON:  Good eveni ng.

So we're here for 411 Pfeifer Street in
Canden, New Jersey. The structure is currently a
duplex. It's a three-story building; duplex. W
want to convert it to a triplex. And the beauty of
this one, we will not be maki ng any changes to the
exi sting grounds. Everything is preexisting.
Starting with the basenent. So it'll be three
units. Each floor will have its own unit. Two
bedroom -- m ni rum two bedroomunits for each floor.

The basenent in each unit will have their
own entrance. And all the entrances are preexisting
entrances. So for the basenent, you'll conme in from

the front of property. On the side there's an
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exi sting entrance right now The existing was a
two-car garage in the rear of the building and all
pretty nmuch work space and storage.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: How are we getting out
of the basenent? How are we going into it?

M5. JOHNSON: The existing are two-door
garages on the rear of the building with parking back
behind in the rear of the building. So we're turning
one garage door to a door for exit as well. The
ot her garage door will be a wi ndow, turned into an
egress w ndow as wel | .

CHAl RVAN HANCE: So the other one is for
a different apartnment?

MS. JOHANSON:  |'m sorry.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: So t he ot her garage door
is for a different apartnent?

M5. JOHANSON: No. There were two garage
doors that went into the sane --

CHAI RVAN HANCE: Bot h basenent s?

M5. JOHNSON: Yes. So we're noving the
garage doors and I'mturning it into an entry door
and a window. |If you cone to the front of the
bui | di ng, you cone to the side of the house and then
you come into your living room |If you cone into the

rear of the building, you'll go to a utility room
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which will have a nain door, a nud roomtype of
thing, and a restroom the bathroomwhich will go to
bedroom No. 1, cone through, bedroom No. 2, kitchen
area and back to the living roomspace. And also the
utility room

Cone outside. If you want to go
upstairs, for the main floor, the front stair which
will utilize the porch which has its own entrance.
The porch belongs to the first floor. And this is
the existing main entrance. And pretty nuch the sane
| ayout for the nost part, two bedroons. This tine,
you're going to the rear of the building, restroom
and cl oset space and a utility roomfor a washer and
dryer. New kitchen you're | ooking into open concept
l'iving space. Fromoutside is another entrance,
exi sting entrance that wll lead you to the second
floor. L-shaped steps which will lead you right up
to the top of the steps. And it's pretty nuch the
sane concept, livingroom space, kitchen. To the rear
of the building, tw bedroomns.

MR. EINGORN: So the rear of the
property, is the grade of the land sloped so it's
i ke the out-wal k or sonething?

M5. JOHNSON: Actually, the rear of the

building, it slopes out to the main street.
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MR EINGORN: This is the front?

M5. JOHNSON: This is the front so it
sl opes.

MR. EINGORN: So the rear of the
property, the ground is |lower so that it's --

M5. JOHNSON: Yes. It's actually
ground. Wen you walk into the basenent is actually
ground | evel .

MR EI NGORN. Got you.

MS. JOHNSON:  You could drive up to where
t he garage was at and you drive right to there.
There's a little alleyway that |eads you to your
gar age.

MR, EI NGORN:  Under st ood.

M5. JOHNSON: This is their parking
spaces. Wien they conme out of their house, they're
goi ng to have that many.

MR EI NGORN:  How many cars can you park;
i ke two-car parking?

MS. JOHNSON:  Two-car par ki ng.

Everyone has their own entrance. For our
egress for the basenent as well. O course we
don't -- so our egress for the main -- our rear
entryway egress w ndow wells as well at those

ground |l evels. W have a porch for the main floor
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And al so coming to the second floor, there will be a
deck also. No exit off the deck if they junp off
but . .

CHAl RMAN HANCE: Al so you have the public
par ki ng out by the front door?

MS. JOHNSON:  Yes.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: | was there earlier.

M5. JOHNSON: Right in front of their
property, 411, they got at least a car and a half.

MR EI'NGORN:  Any questions? Pretty
t hor ough.

M5. ALSTON: D d you guys take a |l ook in
the area of the nei ghborhood and see whether this
woul d be a good fit along the lines of what's out
t here?

M5. TYSON: Yes, it wll.

nS. ALSTON: | know t hey' re dupl exes but
you're going into a triplex.

M5. JOHNSON: There are a coupl e of
triplexes in the area that | definitely know of that
wer e approved. There are spaces -- nice living
spaces and two bedroons and their own entrance.

MR EINGORN:  Any ot her questions? Open
to the public.

M5. RIVERA: Do you have a back door?
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MS. JOHNSON:  Yes.

M5. RIVERA: The second and the third
fl oor?

M5. JOHNSON: The second fl oor does not
have a back door but they do have all egress w ndow.
They're all egress w ndows.

M5. RIVERA: And they have a deck?

M5. JOHNSON:  Yes.

MR EINGORN: Open to the public.
Anybody here tonight that would |ike to be heard on
the application regarding 411 Pfeifer Street?
Heari ng none and seeing none, we'll close the public
portion.

The applicant has appeared tonight
seeking a triplex in an R-2 Zone. So the applicant
requires a use variance approval and then the
foll ow ng bul k vari ance approvals for m ni mum | ot
size, mnimumlot wdth, the |ot depth, aggregate
side yards and off-street parking. The applicant did
say that they two off-street parking spaces but they
require three and three-quarter spaces so essentially
four spaces. So they're about hal fway.

The Board should do a discussion of the
Positive and Negative Criteria and nake a noti on.

VI CE- CHAI RVMAN STILL: | live down the
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bl ock. An amazing upgrade it will be. | grew up a
lot of ny life in East Canden. | think just the fact
that they' re attenpting to upgrade sonething that is
al ready nice-size space, using that space
effectively. | think the parking would be the

only -- that's nmy only concern. But as far as

t he space usage and the upgrade is nuch-needed and
very good.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: | agree with the
Vice-Chairman. | was there around 11 o' cl ock today.
They do have two parking spots in the rear and out
front there was plenty of parking at 11 o' clock
QG her than that, that's another property that
definitely needs a facelift. [It's a sore eye. I'm
happy to see that Canden like | said, is beginning to
grow again. People are starting to appreciate and
take care of the property that we have. And
hopeful |y positive people have sonewhere nice to
l'ive.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN STILL: Modtion to pass.

MR EINGORN: Do we have a second?

M5. MASON:. Second.

MR EINGORN: [|'Il take a roll-call vote.
Chai rman Hance.

CHAl RVAN HANCE:  Yes.
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MR EINGORN: Vice-Chairman Still.
VI CE- CHAI RVAN STI LL:  Yes.

El NGORN: Ms. Al ston.

ALSTON:  Yes.

El NGORN:  Ms. Rivera.

Rl VERA:  Yes.

El NGORN:  Ms. Moss.

MOSS:  Yes.

El NGORN: Ms. Mason.

MASON:  Yes.

253923530

El NGORN: Having six in favor and
none opposed, the notion passes.

CHAI RMAN HANCE: 1'll be by to check it
up.

M5. JOHNSON: Thank you.

MR, EINGORN: The next matter is Mhanmad
Far hat, 807 Sylvan Street.

MR SUNKETT: Good evening. Jason
Sunkett appearing on behalf of M. Farhat. [If |I may,
this is the project summary and phot ographs of the
property.

MR EINGORN: We'll mark this Exhibit A1
for the record.

(Wher eupon Exhibit No. A-1, Project

Sunmmary and Phot ographs of the Property, was marked
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for identification.)

MR EINGORN:  Woul d you raise your right
hand, please, M. Farhat.

MOHAMVAD FARHAT, having first been duly
sworn/affirmed, was exam ned and testified as
fol | ows:

MR EINGORN: Pl ease state your nanme and
address for the record.

MR FARHAT: Mhammad Farhat, 807 Syl van
Street.

MR SUNKETT: Good evening. This matter
cones before the Board. W're seeking a m ninmm
front yard, m ninum aggregate wdth of side yard and
max buil ding coverage is deficient. W're seeking
bul k vari ances for each. Also, the off-street
parking is needed, 2.5 spaces. For this property,
M. Farhat, it has been in his famly for 16 years
you' ve owned this property, correct?

MR FARHAT: Yes.

MR SUNKETT: | call him hone-grown as
well. He wants to nmake this into a duplex. You do
have the project summary. And | have Ms. Johnson,

maybe she can tell us a little bit about the project
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and M. Farhat can suppl enent anythi ng el se we need.
M5. JOHNSON:. We're tal king about 807
Syl van Street, Canden, New Jersey which is currently
an 8-bedroom single-famly hone with al nbst 3, 000
square feet. W want to convert it to a dupl ex.
W will not be working with any -- no addition and
using the existing space. Very nice spaci ous roons.
We have a first floor. Each level wll have its own

unit. The first floor would have three bedroons.

The second floor will have two bedroons. Those
bedroons will be the sane entrance. The main
entrance is still up in the air but for design. But

t he worse case scenario is, they would have their
different entrance once they get to the main
entrance. Then you go straight to the second fl oor.
You nove over to your left, you have the main |iving
room space.

The exi sting house had 8 bedroons and 6
baths. So we'll divide that al nost evenly for a nice
spaci ous bedroom Al bedroons are nore than 10 by
12. They have nice liveable kitchen space. There's
a rear side exit on the first floor existing already.
You conme to the first floor, the main | evel entrance,
and there's an exit on the side for the first floor.

The second floor wll be, the windowis right on top
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of the extended -- egress windowis right on top of
t he extended bedroom So they a drop down.

MR EINGORN. So you would exit on the

r oof ?

M5. JOHNSON: Yes, they would exit on the
r oof .

MR EI NGORN. Got you.

MS. JOHNSON:  And everything exterior is
preexisting. |It's pretty kind of dry. It's a nice

size and nice bedroons. And the restroons, we have
one, two -- two restroons on the first floor and two
on the second floor. Two bedroonms on the first floor
and two bedroons on the second floor wth a | aundry
room

CHAl RMAN HANCE: Tal k to ne about
par ki ng?

MR FARHAT: It's street parking. And we
got the lot next door that |'ve been adopting for the
past ten years so there is parking.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: So you have the | ot next
door. You got to talk a little |ouder.

MR FARHAT: W got the | ot next door
which |'ve been adopting for the past ten years. |
can open that back up. And there is parking on the

front. They denolished a | ot of the houses so
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everybody is parking there.

M5. JOHNSON: To add, there's right
adj acent on the |eft-hand side com ng out the door,
there's a big field ready to be devel oped.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: Do you guys own t hat
field?

VR, FARHAT: No, | don't own it.

MR EINGORN: Just so we're clear,
there's no off-street parking as part of this
application process. So to the extent that you nake
sonme kind of parking lot, that's not part of this
process. You're not approved for that regardl ess.

MR, FARHAT: Under st ood.

M5. JOHNSON: The basenent is just for
storage. Non-liveable. No bedroons there.

CHAI RMAN HANCE: You got separate neters;
separate hot water heaters?

M5. JOHNSON: It will be separate neters;
separate heating. Everything according to code.

MR EI NGORN:  Anybody have questi ons?

M5. ALSTON: | just want to say it again,
just to make sure that you are including the drain,

t he water drainage and naking sure that it's running
correctly when you build because you're fixing this

and you may want to take a look at that. It is in an
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area again that it cones up, alittle warning for
stormvat er and drai nage and drain-offs and you may
want to nake sure you're looking into that.

MR SUNKETT: A point well-taken.
Again, M. Farhat, it has been in your famly for 16
years.

MR FARHAT: W never had any fl ood or
dr ai nage i ssues.

MR SUNKETT: That is well-taken to that
poi nt .

MS. ALSTON: Plus you're addi ng nore,
right, to the bl ock?

MR SUNKETT: Yes.

MS. ALSTON: You're adding nore to the
area so | want to nmake sure that it is still being
handl ed correct.

MR FARHAT: Actually it was nore than

what it's going to be. It was nore than what it's
going to be. 1've elimnated several of the
bat hr oons.

M5. ALSTON: Yes. There are several
bat hr oons.

MR EI'NGORN:  Just real quickly. This
pi cture here, this is the whole building, correct?

MS. JOHNSON:  Yes.




© o0 ~N o o b~ w N -

T R N T R T N T e e e T e N e o N
O N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N B O

113

MR EINGORN:  Any ot her questions? Open
to the public. Anybody in the public here tonight
that would like to be heard on 807 Sylvan Street?
Heari ng and seeing none, we'll close the public
portion. Counsel, do you have any cl osing remarks?

MR SUNKETT: Again, | just believe this

Is a great project. | believe it will provide
housing. It's spacious. Bathroons. There's a yard.
| believe the parking will be addressed. | think
it's just housing for regular folks. | think

obvi ously there's not enough of that. So these

proj ects should be wel coned with open arns. And,
again, M. Farhat is famliar wth the area and he's
been in that place and raised a famly there. So,
again, | call himhone-grown as well.

MR EINGORN:  Any | ast questions?

D scussion of the Positive and Negative Criteria and
a vote.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: Again, it's very
positive. Sonmeone is listening. W're bringing
Canden back. And | sincerely hope that people who
receive that, appreciate it and keep it up. | would
like to see that. That's huge. But, again,
definitely needed. |If not, it would be wasted

space.




© o0 ~N o o b~ w N -

T R N T R T N T e e e T e N e o N
O N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N B O

114

VI CE- CHAI RVAN STI LL: Motion to pass.
M5. MASON:. Second.
MR EINGORN: [|'Il take a roll-call vote.
Chai rman Hance.
CHAI RVAN HANCE:  Yes.
MR EINGORN: Vice-Chairman Still.
VI CE- CHAI RVAN STI LL:  Yes.
El NGORN: Ms. Al ston.
ALSTON:  Yes.
El NGORN: Ms. R vera.
Rl VERA:  Yes.
El NGORN:  Ms. Moss.
MOSS:  Yes.
El NGORN:  Ms. Mason.
MASON:  Yes.
EI NGORN: Six to nothing. Very good.

235393930

El NGORN: The next application is
Mtchell Properties, LLC, 555 Chestnut Street.

MR M TCHELL: Good eveni ng, nenbers of
the Board. |I'mFred Mtchell and owner of Mtchell
Properti es.

MR EINGORN:  First you need to be sworn.

Wul d you rai se your right hand, please.

FRED M TCHELL, having first been duly
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sworn/affirmed, was exam ned and testified as
fol | ows:

MR EINGORN: Pl ease state your nane and
address for the record.

MR. M TCHELL: Fred Mtchell, 1175
Mar| kress Road, Unit 1506, Cherry HIl, New Jersey
08035.

MR EINGORN. M. Mtchell, the applicant
is Mtchell Properties, LLC. Are you the sole owner
of that?

MR- M TCHELL: Yes.

MR EINGORN. Geat. Do you want ne to
read your appeal for zoning or are you ready to
proceed?

MR MTCHELL: |I'mready to proceed. |
have additional information, if | may. | have a
hand-out for sure.

MR EI NGORN:  Ckay.

MR MTCHELL: This will help clarify.

MR EINGORN: For the record, M.

M tchell has handed out a packet consisting of one,
two, three -- four pages. The first three pages
appear to be renderings. And the fourth page is a

tax map. We'll mark it A-1 for the record.
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(Wher eupon Exhibit No. A-1, Renderings, 3
pages and Tax Map, was nmarked for identification.)

MR M TCHELL: I'msure we're famliar
with what's going on here, Broadway, Chestnut. So
we're offering a helping hand in that area. W'd
like to put nine two-bedroomunits on this property.
It's been vacant for quite a while. As you can see,
it calls for a substantial facelift.

| think it would be good for the area.
The nine units will be in excess of 700 square feet
each; two bedroons. Everything will be new. W have
adequat e parking. The parking lot itself holds nine
cars plus the lot frontage is 66. W guess we can
put another three, maybe four once you subtract the
driveway. So at nost we nay be half a car short in
t he parking space area. Hopefully that's it. |'m
here for any questions you have on this.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: | was there today. Very
spaci ous.

MR, M TCHELL: Yes.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: Parking. The only thing
| did see that | didn't like that you have on the
|l eft-hand side, is a gentleman standing in there. So
he kind of spooked ne. Cause | wal ked through the

parking | ot around the building and he was doing his
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stuff back there.

MR. M TCHELL: Three tines |I've had that
pl ace sealed. The last tinme, | had to have it
ci nder bl ock the w ndows and then --

CHAI RVAN HANCE: | seen fresh cinderbl ock
t here.

MR M TCHELL: Yes, exactly. Yes.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: But very spaci ous.
Really no nei ghbors. You have a store across the
street.

MR M TCHELL: Yes.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: And they noved all that
dirt that was there which was great. They noved all
that. Yes that definitely needs a big facelift.
That's a huge j ob.

MR M TCHELL: Thank you. W are trying
to get an additional lot that's adjacent to it too
but it's neither here nor there.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: But wel | - needed there
t hat spot.

MR, M TCHELL: Thank you.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: And I'Il say this,
before a fire breaks out in that building, sonething
shoul d be done to it.

MR M TCHELL: Yes.
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CHAIl RMAN HANCE: It really should. | |ove

Canden and have been here all ny life.

MR. M TCHELL: 1've been here since
' 64.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: 1960. Wen you see it
bei ng com ng back, it's like a fresh --

MR M TCHELL: Yes. Yes, | agree.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: Definitely needed.

MR EINGORN: |'m |l ooking at the
phot ographs and briefly, this existing building, is
that part of the property?

MR M TCHELL: That is the property.

MR EINGORN. And this is going to be
renovated, this building --

MR M TCHELL: Yes.

MR EINGORN. -- or are you going to knock

it down and put up sonething el se?

MR M TCHELL: No, we're going to
renovat e that buil di ng.

MR EINGORN: The existing building.
Ckay.

MR M TCHELL: Now, the building to the
left is not included.

MR EINGORN:. This smaller building is

not i ncl uded?
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MR M TCHELL: Correct.

MR EINGORN: And does it share a party
wal | ? Do they touch or is there a gap?

MR M TCHELL: There's a gap. There's
like a three-inch gap. It's a very snall gap.

MR EINGORN:  Just enough for the breeze.

MR- M TCHELL: Yes.

MR EINGORN: Okay. Geat. And then
there's a large vacant |lot fromthe other side.

MR M TCHELL: Well, this property here
itself, is 66 feet across. Now there's a city
property right next to that that we've already nade
an offer for. So we're waiting for that to go
t hr ough t he phases.

MR EINGORN: So ny next question is, |I'm
| ooking at the renderings. They | ook very nice.

This asphalt parking area, is that going to go to the
edge of the property and or will there be sone grass
strip along the edge?

MR MTCHELL: It will go to the edge of
the property at this point.

MR EINGORN: Have you figured out how
drainage will work? Because right now --

MR M TCHELL: The pitch will be towards
the street. As to the water on the building, that
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wi Il be handled just |ike regular drain water. But
the pitch will be toward the street for the parking.
MR EINGORN: | think with a construction

project of this magnitude, Dr. WIIlians' denial
| etter says, site plan approval nmay needed. Wth
this type of project, | think site plan approval
shoul d be a condition because R&V needs to confirm
you know, that the drainage is proper and all of
t hat .

MR. M TCHELL: Excuse ne one second.

MR EINGORN. So | think any site plan
approval should be a condition before this is
appr oved. M5. MASON: So what about the other
building on the side? He said it's a snmall gap but
it doesn't look |like there's --

MR MTCHELL: [|I'msorry. | stand
corrected. On the gravel area, that is for draining.

MR EINGORN: |I'msorry. What gravel
area?

M5. MASON:. The par ki ng.

MR M TCHELL: The parking lot. You had
nmenti oned sonme gravel area.

MR EINGORN:. Is this not going to be
asphalt this parking area?

CHAI RMAN HANCE: It's a tore-up parking
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| ot.

MR. M TCHELL: It's a conbination of
asphalt and gravel. The gravel portion here is to
absorb the water. The pitch will be towards this --

Can you see the gravel ed area?

MR EI NGORN:  Ckay.

MR M TCHELL: So the water can seep into
t he gravel --

MR EINGORN. So you're proposing asphalt
up to the gravel.

MR. M TCHELL: That's correct.

MR EINGORN: And the gravel is on the
property?

MR M TCHELL: Yes, it is.

MR EINGORN. | could see the picture.

CHAl RVAN HANCE: That fence is the
parking lot; the fence that's falling down?
Not on that picture; on the original picture.

MR M TCHELL: Oh, on the original, yes.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: This fence here.

MR, M TCHELL: Yes.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: That's a part of the
parking lot, your parking |lot?

MR, M TCHELL: Yes.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: Cause that's where
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wal ked ar ound t oday.

MR M TCHELL: ©Oh, okay. That fence is
no | onger there.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: A pi ece.

MR MTCHELL: O piece of it is there.

M5. MASON: So where is the house? This
is different town, isn't it, this rendering?

MR M TCHELL: It | ooks nice, doesn't it?
That house is still there. It's attached. W're not
sure how long --

M5. MASON: Yeah, but |I'msaying on the
rendering. The rendering |ooks conpletely different
from.. | know that obviously it is rehabbed but it
doesn't show --

VI CE- CHAI RVAN STILL:  Wat Ms. Mason is
saying is, your rendering doesn't have this house
connected there.

MR M TCHELL: Correct.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN STILL: So it's not
showing -- it's kind of confusing because it's not
show ng us everyt hi ng.

M5. MASON:. And it has the lights or
sonething. It looks |like it's a different town
t han. . .

CHAl RMAN HANCE: Right. So behind
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here -- see the house back there? There's a fence
right here. See the tree?

MR, M TCHELL: Yes.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: It used to be a fence.
But it's not there anynore.

MR. M TCHELL: Right.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: But you coul d see where
it used to be a fence at?

MR- M TCHELL: Yes.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: And t he house sets back.
This white house, we're going way back there and
behi nd the buil di ng.

MR. M TCHELL: You know, |'m not sure

that that's still there but okay.
CHAI RVAN HANCE: Yes. | went there
today. The house still sits there. | don't know if

anyone lives in there or not, but house is still
t here.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN STI LL:  Ms. Mason is just
saying that this rendering doesn't contain this house
right here so it's kind of |ike confusing cause you
can't see this area, this house, it's like a
different picture is what she's sayi ng.

MR EINGORN: Yes. | got you.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: Yeah with the lights
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here. So the picture here --

MR M TCHELL: The rendering?

CHAl RMAN HANCE: Right. So what they're
confused with is the house that's thin right beside
it, this kind of throws everything off. The
bl uepri nt would be better because it shows you the
structure of the new buil di ng.

MR. M TCHELL: ©h, okay.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: But you're show ng the
finished product, how it should | ook?

MR M TCHELL: That's pretty nuch, yes.

M5. MASON: It can't be really finished
because it doesn't show the side of the house. It
doesn't show -- | nean, | see the parking | ot but
then there's houses in the back of it as you stated
and it doesn't show howit's going to ---

M5. MOSS: Howit's going to sit on that
property.

MB. MASON: R ght.

MR M TCHELL: Wat the rendering, that's
our attenpt because we're restructuring the whole
front of the building. This is what it's going to
|l ook like. This is what we hope to achieve.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: Right. So the house

beside it?
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MR. M TCHELL: The house beside it, we
did not include it in the rendering.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: So do you guys own it or
are you trying to buy it?

MR MTCHELL: W are trying to.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: Because that's going to
make this -- that's a sore eye sticking out there.
So that's what |I'msaying if you're going to try to
buy that.

MR M TCHELL: W are trying to buy that
and the |ot.

CHAl RVAN HANCE: And the |ots around
it?

MR. M TCHELL: Yes. The church owns all
the rest of the corner up there.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: Ri ght.

MR M TCHELL: Yeah, we're trying to get
the two things beside us. According to M. Rizzo,

t hat property may not be there very soon.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: The Gty may knock it
down?

MR M TCHELL: Yes. Very shortly.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN STILL:  Well, the Zoning
Board has to go by what's there now so that's why

we're tal king about what's there now.




© o0 ~N o o b~ w N -

T R N T R T N T e e e T e N e o N
O N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N B O

126

MR, M TCHELL: Ckay.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN STILL: So, again, like
said, we just trying to figure it all out because the
renderi ng doesn't have the other property connected
toit. And as of right now, it probably be best to
show us how the ot her house is going to | ook up
agai nst your final product.

MR, M TCHELL: |Is that an issue?

VI CE- CHAl RVAN STILL: | nean, it's just
alittle confusion on our end but | think that we're
going to --

MR. M TCHELL: Because it's a different
property that's outside of the property that we're
devel opi ng.

MR EINGORN: |I'm | ooking at the
application and the appeal for zoning. The appeal
for zoning says, "The proposed use is residenti al
multi-famly dwelling. R ght? And it doesn't
request a site plan approval or a site plan waiver.
And | think what's probably under the circunstances
if the Board is considering this application for
approval is, weigh in on the use variance
application; determ ne whether or not the Board is
okay under the | egal standard of granting a use

vari ance for nine residential apartnents at this
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property. And then condition the approval upon site
pl an because this is, you' re taking a | arge vacant

| ot which |ooks to be all dirt and turning it into a
| arge parking | ot and then we can figure out how nuch
parking is actually needed versus how nuch parking is
proposed and all of those itens related to site plan.

This is a rather large lot and it is a |arge

pr oposal .

MR M TCHELL: If I may.

MR ElI NGORN:  Yes.

MR MTCHELL: | was told to include the
parking lot. | was told to include a survey and a
plan for the parking lot. | felt like |I delivered
t hat .

MR EINGORN: Right. The issue is that
there's not sufficient detail in the plan itself to

determ ne what's going on, right, wthout being
constructed?

MR MTCHELL: Wat is it that you need
to see?

MR EINGORN: Excuse ne?

MR MTCHELL: I'msorry. You can
finish,.

MR EINGORN. So we have a Zoni ng Board

Engi neer who woul d | ook at the construction of the
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parking lot, the size of the parking lot, the ingress
and egress, how wide the curb cut needs to be to get
in and out, the circulation of the parking |ot, how
w de the spaces have to be, your ADA conpliance, what
has to be under the asphalt in order to make it
stabl e enough to conmply with whatever the ordi nances
are or the RS.I1.S. Right?

And so, we have a Zoni ng Board Engi neer
who woul d determ ne all of that and nake sure that it
conplies with ordi nance, our ordinance. And we are
equi pped from what we have here either
prof essionally, because |'m not an engi neer, or from
the information that's been provided to nake all
t hose determ nations. And so, |I'mrecomending to
t he Board that under Sub-Paragraph 3: Site Plan
approval should be required as part of the
appl i cation.

Now t he Board can weigh in on the use
vari ance and say, hey, either we like this project
and we think it conplies with the |egal standard and,
therefore, we'll grant the use variance conditioned
upon obtaining site plan approval. O, they'll say,
this isn't the right place for a 9-bedroom apart nent
buil di ng and here's why. But in either event, the

way it sits now, there's really not enough
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i nformati on here avail abl e, nor does the Board have
proper or professional representation on an

engi neering side to nake a determ nation as to this
rather large parking lot. So that's ny
reconmendat i on.

VI CE- CHAI RMAN STILL: So ny take it,

i ke the project.

MR, ElI NGORN. Excuse ne. Are there any
ot her questions? | just talked a |ot.

VI CE- CHAI RVAN STILL: You explained it
very well. You cleared it up very well.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: Do you want to open to
t he public?

MR EINGORN. Yes. |Is there anybody here
tonight in the public that would like to be heard on
t he application of 555 Chestnut Street?

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER:  Yes.

MR. EINGORN: Pl ease state your nanme and
address for the record because you' ve al ready been
swor n.

MR. ABED:. Yosef Abed.

MR, EINGORN. This is Yosef Abed. He's
al ready been sworn.

MR. ABED:. W have interest in the area.

That area, anybody willing to do anything there would
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be great. And | also like the fact that there are
2-bedroom apartnents, not 1 bedroons. Because it
causes chaos. |In ny profession we put a lot of units
up for rent. And the unit | put up in Canden, | get
75 applicants within 48 hours. So there is a denand
for 2-bedroomunits in the City. So | have nore work
to do. And all the other stuff that you guys approve
is really needed. Wwen | put a unit on, | have to
turn ny phone off. That's how busy | get on a daily
basis. W need units |ike fast.

MR EINGORN:. Geat. This |ooks like a
really nice project.

MR ABED:. It's a great unit and the
parking is great. It's a big unit. 1It's been there.
I f they don't do nothing, sonebody is going to burn
it. Drug usage and prostitution is ranpant in that
nei ghbor hood.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: Thank you.

MR EINGORN: Any ot her questions for the
applicant?

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER:  Yes.

MR EINGORN:  Woul d you raise your right
hand, pl ease.

FARAG FARHAT, having first been duly
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sworn/affirmed, was exam ned and testified as
fol | ows:

MR EINGORN: Pl ease state your nane and
address for the record.

MR FARHAT: 8404 Bal f our Road,
Pennsauken, New Jersey.

MR EINGORN: Thank you, sir. Wat would
you | i ke to say about the application?

MR M TCHELL: About the parking |ot, I
just want to say that like half of it is already
paved, existing paved. And the rest we're just going
to leave it as stone. So as far as water drainage,
SO it's just going to go to the ground. And that one
house that you pointed to like it's back, is actually
not right behind our building. It's just |ike on the
anot her street. |It's too far fromthe building to
cover. The one next door, we're trying to buy.

So far nobody can get themout. So we're
wor ryi ng about our building getting burned with the
peopl e over there because it's already three in the
| ast two nonths catching on fire. W're trying to
fence it, secure it. W've been trying to do it for
like a while. W just talked to JimRi zzo. They

really want to deno it but we're trying to save it.
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So as far as going to the Board, we're trying to
start.

W' ve been there |ike al nost everyday to
secure it. Then the trash with the tickets with
everything. The nore we wait, we're just al nost
going to give up. W want to save it. | don't
know. Like parking, | nean, with the size you cannot
determ ne |i ke how many cars would be there. W
al ready have |ike 40 by 100. So al nost 4,000 square
feet in the parking lot. W can hold |ike so many
cars. And we already placed a bid for the public
auction to get the next door lot which is already
fenced. Wen we purchased it, we thought it was
ours. And then the Gty just cane and knocked out
the fence saying that it's not ours. So we have to
go back 24 feet to one side. | don't knowif this is
hel pful .

M5. MUHAMVAD: So that parking area that
space is a part of Block 323, Lot 21. That whole
parking is a part of the buil ding?

MR FARHAT: It's part of the buil ding.

MR, M TCHELL: Qur building is 66 by 95.
MR FARHAT: You're not going --
MR EINGORN: One nonent. You guys can't
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tal k over each over because the court reporter is
going to have a hard tine. Please speak one at a
tinme.

MR EINGORN. So I'mlooking at 870.230.F
whi ch is the anount of parking needed under the
ordi nance. So we need 1.75 spaces for each 2-bedroom
unit. You got nine so you need 15 and 3 quarter
spaces.

MR M TCHELL: Excuse ne. Don't we get
consi deration? W have a 66 foot frontage.

MR EINGORN. You don't get consideration
for street parking. That's public parking. The
requirenents for off-street neaning on the property.
That's how the ordi nance reads, right? So you need
1. 75 spaces for each of these units. N ne units,
that's 15 and three-quarter spaces; otherw se, you
need a variance which looks |like you're essentially
requesting. R ght? So you're proposing nine
spaces --

MR FARHAT: Ten in the parking | ot.

MR EINGORN: Ten spaces. And you're
short al nost six spaces; essentially six spaces,
right?

MR. FARHAT: | thought it's 1.5 but

that's sonething --
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MR M TCHELL: That's enough.

MR EINGORN. If you have ten and you
need 15 and three quarters, that's |like six spaces
about, right?

MR. M TCHELL: Yes. W would need a
vari ance for that.

MR EINGORN:. Correct. And so to the
extent that you go through site plan, you may be able
to squeeze nore spaces on there or figure out the
circulation such that you don't need a variance. |'m
not an engineer. So that's why |I'msaying to the
Board: |'mnot an engineer and | can't nake these
determ nations. And the Board really needs counsel.

| get that there's sonme rush here. You
may be able to apply for an energency permt to do
certain things. That's sonething that you'll have to
talk to the Zoning O fice about. But as a
prof essional here and the Board's attorney, |I'm
recommendi ng site plan approval because this is a

| arge parking lot. And while it |ooks |like a great

project, you still got to do it the right way.
MR, M TCHELL: | understand.
MR EINGORN. That's all. [I'mnot trying

to hurt you. You're not ny client. This is ny
client. |1 got to do what's best by ny client.
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MR FARHAT: W too. W're not trying to
t ake short cuts.

MR EINGORN:. W are not accusing you of
that. There's no accusation of you doi ng anything
wWr ong.

MR. M TCHELL: That's a substanti al
amount of asphalt parking lot that's still there from
t he commercial use of the building.

MR, EINGORN:. That's fine. But we can't
tell fromwhat's been submtted, what's the parking
| ot and what's not. W have pictures. Pictures are
pretty far away. W don't have a diagram from above
or anything that shows, here is the preexisting
asphalt; here is the preexisting stone; here is where
we're going to repave. W don't have any of that
information, right?

We don't have construction details. W
don't know if you're going to rip up the asphalt,
replace the asphalt. And these are things that are
required for site plan approval. There's no real
| andscapi ng proposed, right? You're not proposing
bushes or anything. And that's generally required
for a project of this size.

All I"msaying is, | don't have the

ability to nake those determ nations and this is a
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big lot with a | arge anount of people that you're
about to put there. Right? Ei ghteen bedroons in one
building with a ten parking spaces. It's a large
project and it's a really nice project.

MR. FARHAT: There's no houses over
there. It's all lots. There's no neighbors.

MR EINGORN: |I'mnot worried about the
nei ghbors so much as |I'mworri ed about the Board
conplying with its obligations. That's ny concern.

MR FARHAT: W have properties in the
Cty. W understand the issue.

MS. ALSTON: | think that's really what's
going on. | think we are all saying the sane thing
that it is a nice project. W think it's a great
idea. But we would like to see nore as far as the
pl anni ng, the construction. That's nine apartnents.
It could be two to four people in each one of those
apartnents. And we would like to nake sure that we
are approving -- it's going to be sonething that's
goi ng to stay.

MR EINGORN:  Anything else fromthe
Boar d?

CHAI RVAN HANCE:  No.

MR, EINGORN. So a discussion and a

nmotion. And the notion needs to be detail ed about
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what the Board is voting on.

CHAI RVAN HANCE: | was out to the area
today probably around 12:30 and like | said, | wal ked
around the property. That would actually start that
communi ty back because everything is leveled. The
majority of that area is leveled. There's really no
houses standing there. You got a corner store. You
got a church further down. The dirt pile is gone
over there. A few houses to the left.

So, yes, that would be a definitely a
huge project. W definitely need a site plan. And
you never know, that site plan could give you extra
spots. That's a huge parking |ot. But once you get
a site plan and neasure everything out, that woul d
tell you what you really have there.

Agai n, sonething that's well-needed in
Canden, especially that area. Like | said, that area
is dead. Even the gentlenman said, hey, | wouldn't do
it there but it needs to be done. That's barren
| and. So, yes, | understand the rush. It could be
set on fire. | saw the new cenent bl ocks up there
where you bl ocked everything off --

MR, M TCHELL: Yes.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: -- so they couldn't get

in there.
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MR M TCHELL: Everyday is a chall enge.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: But all the plywood that
you have, they will find a way. | think it's a great
project. And as you said, if passed, the use
vari ance. But also we have to say that we need a
site plan to be approved and al so wai vers that you
may need. | think it's a great plan and that woul d
definitely brightened that area up because that area
I s done.

MR, EINGORN: Pronote a desirabl e visual
I npact .

CHAI RVAN HANCE: Yes. Major.

"1l make a notion to grant wwth a use
vari ance but upon the site plan.

MR EINGORN. A notion to approve the use
variance with a condition of approval being obtaining
site plan.

CHAl RMAN HANCE: Site plan and wai vers.

MR, EINGORN: That's the notion. Do we
have a second?

VI CE- CHAI RVAN STI LL:  Second.

MR EINGORN: [|'Ill take a roll-call vote.
Chai rman Hance.

CHAI RVAN HANCE:  Yes.

MR EINGORN: Vice-Chairman Still.
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VI CE- CHAI RVAN STI LL:  Yes.
El NGORN: Ms. Al ston.
ALSTON:  Yes.

El NGORN:  Ms. Rivera.
Rl VERA:  No.

El NGORN: Ms. Mbss.
MOSS:  Yes.

El NGORN:  Ms. Mason.
MASON:  Yes.

25303530

El NGORN: Having five in favor and
one opposed, the notion passes. Congratul ati ons on
your use vari ance.

MR M TCHELL: Thank you.

MR EINGORN. The last matter, Dw ght
Warren, 841 Princess Avenue. Has Dw ght Warren
showed up? Last call. Dwght Warren is not here.
W will carry his application for one nonth. This is
noti ce that nobody who is not here because it's enpty
but this is notice to the public that Dw ght Warren,
841 Princess will be carried to June as a courtesy.

We have the Adoption of Resol utions.
The first one on the list is the denial for
M. Turner. | didn't get to that yet because | was
trying to do a nice job for that. Not that | don't

do a nice job for all of them
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The foll owi ng Resolutions are up for
adoption: G anting Non-Conform ng Use for King Lu
Legacy, 1309 Princess, a dupl ex.

Granting Bul k Vari ance Approvals for the
Phoeni x Devel opnent G oup, 850 & 852 Wodl and Avenue.
Those are two separate resol utions.

Granting Bul k Vari ance Approvals and Site
Pl an Wai vers for the Phoeni x Devel opment for 454, 456
& 458 Mechanic Street. Those are also three separate
resol utions.

Granting Use Variance Approval and Site
Pl an Wai ver for VIP Industries 1402 Broadway. That
was a bar ber shop.

Granting Bul k Vari ance Approval for Air
Homes, 11, LLC, 451 Line Street. That was a dupl ex.

Granting Use and Bul k Vari ance Approval s
for North Speed Auto Repair, 111 Main Street. That
was the nmechanic shop that used to be the detailing
shop.

Granting Use Variance Approval and Site
Pl an Waiver for Victoria Realty, 523 N 27th Street.
That's additional storage containers and a 3-bay
gar age.

Everybody but Ms. Rivera is able to vote

on these resol utions. Do we have a notion to
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adopt ?

CHAl RVAN HANCE: |

adopt .
MR, El NGORN:

VI CE- CHAI RVAN STI LL

MR El NGORN:

Chai rman Hance.

CHAI RMAN HANCE:

MR El NGORN:

VI CE- CHAI RVAN STI LL:

El NGORN:
ALSTON:
El NGORN:
MOSS:
El NGORN:
MASON:
El NGORN:

25 30 2D

Now |
MS. MASON:
MS. ALSTON:
MR El NGORN:
THE BQARD
MR El NGORN:

a good eveni ng.

make a notion to

And a second?
Second.
"Il take a roll-cal
Yes.
Vice-Chairman Still.
Yes.

Ms. Al ston.
Yes.

Ms. Mbss.

Yes.

Ms. Mason.
Yes.

So noved.

need a notion to adjourn.

Motion to adjourn.
Second.

Al in favor?
Yays.

So noved to adj ourn.

**(Meeting concluded at 8:26 p.m)**

vot e.

Have
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